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Introductory Comment

Throughout this amendment to our annual report on Form 10-KSB, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “Summit”
and “the Company” refer to Summit Brokerage Services, Inc., a Florida corporation, and, unless the context
indicates otherwise, includes our subsidiaries.

Forward Looking Statements

This amendment to our annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. When used in this Annual Report, the words “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “continue,”
“estimate,” “project” or “intend” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements regarding events,
conditions and financial trends in connection with our future plan of operations, business strategy, operating results
and financial position. Discussions containing such forward-looking statements may be found in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Current shareholders and prospective
investors are cautioned that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. Such
forward-looking statements by their nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties, certain of which are beyond
our control, and actual results for future periods could differ materially from those discussed in this Annual Report,
depending on a variety of important factors, among which are the success or failure of our management’s efforts to
implement our business strategy; the level of acquisition opportunities available to us and our ability to price and
negotiate such transactions on a favorable basis, our ability to properly manage growth and successfully integrate
acquired companies and operations, our ability to compete with major established companies, ‘our ability to attract
and retain qualified personnel, and other risks which may be described from time to time in future filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. ’

”




PART I
Item 1. Business.

Introduction L
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc., a Florida corporation organized in 1993, is a Florida-based full service
retail brokerage firm providing a broad range of securities brokerage and investment services to primarily individual
investors. We also sell insurance products, predominantly fixed and variable annuities and life insurance, through a
subsidiary,’ SBS Insurance Agency of Florida, Inc., a Florida corporation (“SBSIA”). Through another of our
subsidiaries, Summit Financial Group, Inc., a Florida corporation and registered investment advisor (“SFG”), we
provide asset management services. Summit, together with its subsidiaries, is referred to herein alternately as
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“Summit,” “Company, e,” “our,” or “‘us.”

Summit is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), the
National Association of Securities Dealers Regulation, Inc. ("NASDR"), the Municipal Securities Rule Making
Board ("MSRB"), and the Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") and is licensed to conduct its .
brokerage activities in 46 states. SFG, our investment advisory firm, is registered or eligible to conduct business as
an investment advisor in 23 states.

In May 2002, a controlling interest in Summit Brokerage was acquired by Marshall T. Leeds, who assumed
the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at that time. Shortly thereafter, we began a private placement of
our common stock, which resulted in the receipt of gross proceeds of approximately $3,000,000 as of the closing of
the offering in March 2003. Concurrent with our efforts to raise capital, we undertook several measures designed to
not only enhance our revenue (through the addition of registered representatives, both individually as well as
through the acquisition of assets of other firms), but also to improve our ability to more efficiently and effectively
service our registered representatives. Toward that end, in 2002 we hired several new employees, including
members of senior management, and leased additional office space in Boca Raton, Florida to house these
employees. We also undertook improvements to our information technology systems. In January 2003, we acquired
the Boca.Raton branch office of Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc., which branch generated, in the 12
month petiod prior to its acquisition, approximately $5.6 million in gross revenue. -

- We have a history of operating losses. In 2002 and 2001, we reported losses of $1,619,010 and $547,748,
respectively. In general, our financial results can be impacted by a number of factors, including our ability to recruit
and retain registered representatives as well as general market conditions and volatility, which is often an expression
of investor confidence. In periods of waning investor confidence, such as 2002, our revenues suffer as our clients
make fewer investments. Furthermore, our results during that period were negatively impacted by the growth in,
and improvements to our infrastructure undertaken in 2002, As we continue to grow, we may also continue to have
increases in expenses associated with growth such as increased personnel and office space costs. There is no
assurance that any increased revenue from growth will be sufficient to offset increased expenses.

As of March 31, 2003, we had approximately 100 registered representatives operating from approximately
50 offices located throughout the country, with approximately one-half of those offices located in Florida and the
Southeast United States. The number of registered representatives in our affiliate offices typically range from one to
five, although the number of registered representatives in certain offices may exceed this amount. With the
exception of the Boca Raton office, all of our branch offices and satellite locations are owned and operated by
independent owners, whom we refer to as affiliates, who maintain all appropriate licenses and are responsible for all
of their respective office overhead and expenses. Historically, many of our affiliates have also provided financial
planning services to their clients, wherein the registered representative evaluates a clients’ financial needs and
objectives, develops-a detailed plan, and then implements the plan with the clients’ approval. When the
implementation of such objectives involves the purchase or sale of securities (including the placement of assets:
within a managed account) such transactions are effected through the Company, for which we earmn either a
commission or a fee.



We do not hold any funds or securities of our customers, but instead utilize, on a fully disclosed basts, the
services of both First Clearing Corporation (a division of Wachovia Corporation) (“FCC”) and RBC Dain
Correspondent Services (a division of RBC Dain Rauscher Incorporated) (“Dain”) as our clearing brokers
(collectively, the “Clearing Brokers™). Our clearing arrangements provide us with back office support, transaction
processing services on all principal national and international securities exchanges, and access to many other
financial services and products. The agreements allow us to offer a range of products and services that are generally
offered only by firms that are larger and have more capital than Summit.

"Our revenues consist primarily of commissions and fee income earned from securities transactions and
related activities, such as fees for managing a client’s assets (asset managed accounts). The majority of our
commissions have traditionally come from the sale of mutual fund shares and annuity products. The following table
reflects the various sources of revenue and the percentage of total revenues for each of the last two fiscal years:

2002 2001

Mutual funds $2,031,102 33% $3,171,414 45%
Annuities $1,477,165 24% $1,902,848 27%
Insurance $1,169,422 19% $1,550,469 22%
Equities § 861,680 14% $ 211,428 3%
Registered Investment Advisory Fees
) $ 369,291 6% $ 140,952 2%
Miscellaneous (2) $ 246.194 4% $ 70476 1%

Total $6,154,854 100% 7,04 7 100%

(1) Represents management fees derived from managed accounts.
(2) Miscellaneous includes interest and other income.

By their nature, our business activities are highly competitive and are subject to, among other things,
general market conditions, including the volatility of the trading markets and the attractiveness of various forms of
investment products. Consequently, our revenues and net income are subject to substantial positive and negative
fluctuations due to a variety of factors that cannot be predicted with great certainty and may result in revenues and
net income in any particular period that may not be representative of full-year results and may vary significantly
from period to period. Furthermore, our mix of business in any particular quarter will be impacted by several
factors, including the attractiveness of any particular type of investment when compared with other types of
investments, and the types of investments sold by newly added brokers to our company, many of whom specialize in
the sale of specific types of investment products. While economic conditions in 2002 suppressed investments
generally, as is reflected in the above table, our commission revenues derived from the sale of equities (i.e., trades in
individual stocks for customers) and registered investment advisory fees (i.e., fees from asset managed accounts)
increased over 2001. We believe those increases are primarily attributable to the type of business conducted by
registered representatives we added in 2002 as well as a shift in investors’ preferences.

Our business plan is focused on increasing our network of affiliated registered representatives, primarily
through recruiting efforts. Although we will continue to recruit those registered representatives who serve as
financial planners (who sell primarily annuities, insurance and mutual funds), we also intend to pursue the addition
of registered representatives who focus on the sale of different types of securities, namely equities and fixed income
products. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in our recruiting efforts. We will also pursue the
acquisition of the assets of brokerage firms. Our ability to realize growth through acquisitions, however, will
depend on the availability of target broker/dealer firms and our ability to successfully negotiate favorable terms, and
there can be no assurance that we will be able to consummate such acquisitions. Further, there are costs associated
with the assimilation of new businesses and personnel, which may be more than we anticipate at the time. Thus,
there is no assurance that we will achieve or maintain profitability.




We believe that our operations and current capital resources will be sufficient to fund our working capital
needs through fiscal year 2003. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to limit our future negative
cash flow or that we will be able to obtain any outside financing that we may require in the future. Unless we are
able to increase our revenues, add new branch offices and registered representatives, and/or significantly reduce our
operating costs, we may need to fund any future negative cash flows from additional debt or equity financing. In
addition, we anticipate that our strategy of growth through acquisitions will necessitate additional debt and/or equity
financing, although there can be no assurances that this will happen. Our failure to obtain sufficient financing that
we may need in the future could have a material adverse effect on our operations and our ability to continue as a
going concern.

Affiliate Program

Our primary method of operation is through an affiliate program, which allows registered representatives to
operate as independent contractors. As of March 31, 2003, all but approximately 20 of our registered
representatives are affiliates. A registered representative who becomes a Summit affiliate establishes his/her own
office and is solely responsible for the payment of all expenses associated with the operation of the branch office
(inclhuding rent, utilities, furniture, equipment, stock quotations, and general office supplies) although all of that
branch’s revenues from securities brokerage transactions accrue to Summit. Because our affiliates bear the
responsibility for these expenses, we pay to them a significant percentage, typically 80% to 90%, of the
commissions they generate. This compares with a payout rate of approximately 20% to 45% to registered
representatives working in a traditional brokerage setting where the brokerage firm bears substantially all of the
costs of maintaining its sales forces, including providing employee benefits, office space, sales assistants, telephone
service, and supplies. The affiliate program permits the Company to expand its base of revenue and its network for
the retail distribution of securities without the capital expenditures that would be required to open company-owned
offices and the additional administrative and other costs of hiring registered representatives as in-house employees.

Affiliates must possess a sufficient level of commission brokerage business and experience to enable the
individual to independently support his’her own office. Financial professionals such as insurance agents, financial
planners, and accountants, who already provide financial services to their clients, can often affiliate with Summit
and obtain the required licenses to become registered representatives. Affiliation enables these professionals to offer
financial products and services to their clients through Summit and earn commissions and fees for these transactions
and services. Affiliates are given broad discretion to structure their own practices and to specialize in different areas
of the securities market, subject to Summit’s supervisory procedures.

Summuit provides full support services to each of the affiliates, including access to stock and options execution
and over-the-counter stock trading; products such as insurance, mutual funds, unit trusts and investment adwsory
programs; and research, compliance, supervision, accounting and related services.

Each affiliate is required to obtain and maintain in good standing each license required by the SEC and
NASD to conduct the type of securities business in which the affiliate will engage, and to register in the various
states in which he/she intends to service customers. Summit is ultimately responsible for supervising all of its
registered representatives, whether affiliates or in-house registered representatives. We can incur substantial
liability from improper actions of any of our registered representatives. We maintain a professional liability errors
and omissions insurance policy which provides coverage for certain actions taken and/or omissions made by our
registered representatives, employees and other agents in connection with the purchase and sale of securities. There
1s no assurance, however, that such insurance will cover any and all claims that may be asserted against Summit or,
if such claims are asserted and are deemed to be w1th1n the scope of coverage, that such coverage will be sufficient
to cover the amount of.any judgment.

Commission Revenues

The most significant portion of our revenues is derived from commissions generated by our brokerage
activities, including from the sale of annuities (through SBSIA) and mutual fund shares. We also generate
commissions from the purchase or sale of equities and fixed income products for our customers from other dealers
on an agency basis. For transactions executed on an agency basis, we are paid a commission by our client for
processing that client’s buy or sell order. At this time, we anticipate that the percentage of revenue that we derive




form the sale of each type of investment product will change as investors’ preferences change. Our mix of business
will also change depending on the types of registered representatives we recruit and the types of investment products
on which they focus. In addition to commissions, we also generate fees, primarily paid to us in connection with the
management of a client’s account through SFG. We do not currently make markets in any securities.

We record commissions earned from the sale of securities, annuities and insurance as “commission
revenue,” as investment products are sold by our registered representatives. We also record as “commission
revenue” the fees we are paid to manage our customers’ accounts at the time we receive such fees. We then pay out
a percentage of this amount, which we record as “commission expense,” to the registered representative who sold
the product, in accordance with the agreement each registered representative enters into with us. In general, these
agreements provide for either a fixed payout percentage or a tiered payout percentage based on total gross
production, and do not take into account the type of security sold giving rise to the commission.

Mutual Funds. We have agreements with numerous mutual fund management companies under which we
sell shares in a variety of mutual funds. Mutual fund commissions are derived from standard dealers' discounts that
are a small percentage of the purchase price of the shares depending upon the terms of the dealer agreement and the
size of the transaction. In addition, most funds permit the Company to receive additional periodic fees based upon
the customer's investment maintained in particular funds. For 2002, we earned gross commissions of approximately
$2.0 million from the purchase and sale of mutual fund shares, which represented approximately 33% of our total
revenue.

Agency Transactions (Equities). We charge commissions to our clients in accordance with our established
commission schedule. In certain instances, varying discounts from the schedule are given, generally based upon the
client’s level of business, the trade size and other relevant factors. Because our commissions are transaction-based
revenues, they are influenced by the number, size and market value of client transactions and the mix of investment
products being sold. For 2002, we earned gross commissions of approximately $861,000 on agency equity
transactions, which represented approximately 14% of our total revenue. .

SBS Insurance Agency

Our registered representatives offer fixed and variable annuities and life insurance products to their clients
through our subsidiary, SBS Insurance Agency of Florida, Inc. (“SBSIA”). As an agent for any particular insurance
company, we receive commissions equal to some percentage, typically between 5% and 7%, of the amount invested,
or, in the case of life insurance, some percentage of the premium. Summit has executed agency agreements with
various national insurance companies and is able to offer life insurance, long term care insurance, and fixed and
variable annuities to its customers through substantially all of its investment representatives who hold insurance
sales licenses. In 2002, the Company earned gross commissions of $2.6 million from the sale of insurance and
annuity products, which represented approximately 43% of our total revenue.

Asset Management and Portfolio Advisory Services

Through our Registered Investment Adviser, Summit Financial Group, Inc. (“SFG”), we provide
investment advisory services to clients through independent, third-party sponsored advisory programs. SFG is
registered or eligible to conduct business as an investment adviser in 23 states. As of December 31, 2002, SFG had
over $30 million of assets under management.

Clients who utilize our investment advisory services pay us a quarterly fee, which typically equals some
percentage multiplied by the value of the assets, as of the beginning of the quarter, which they have placed with us
to manage. In general, a client will pay from 1.0% to 3.0%, on an annualized basis, of the amount of assets placed
under management as a management fee. The actual fee charged to a particular client is based on, among other
things, the value of the assets under management and the particular management fee program in which that investor
1s participating. To the extent that the value of the assets under management for any individual investor changes
between one quarter and the next, the fees that we are paid by that investor will also change. Because clients with
managed accounts are paying this fee, they are not charged a per-transaction commission each time a transaction is
effected in their accounts. In 2002, the Company earned management fees of approximately $370,000, which
represented approximately 6% of our total revenue.



Clearing Broker

We do not hold any funds or securities of our securities brokerage customers. Rather, we use the services
of our Clearing Brokers on a fully disclosed basis. Our Clearing Brokers process all securities transactions and
maintain customer accounts on a fee basis. The services provided include billing, credit review and control
(including for margin accounts), receipt, and custody and delivery of securities. The Clearing Brokers also lend
funds to our customers through the use of margin credit. These loans are made to customers on a secured basis, with
the Clearing Brokers maintaining collateral in the form of saleable securities, cash or cash equivalents. However, if
the Company's customers do not pay or deliver securities for a trade or if they do not properly maintain their credit
balances on "margin" accounts, and there is a loss for which the Company cannot collect from our customer, the
Company is generally liable for such losses.

Customer accounts are protected through the Securities Investor Protection Corporation for up to $500,000
per account, of which coverage for cash balances is limited to $100,000. Additional protection up to the entire net
asset value of a client’s account is provided through private insurance carriers. Pursuant to the terms of our
agreements with our Clearing Brokers, we have agreed to indemnify and hold each of them harmless from certain
liabilities and claims, including claims arising from transactions of our customers. We believe that, in general, the
Clearing Brokers are able to provide the Company and its clients with services at a total cost which is less than it
would cost us to process such transactions on our own.

Seasonality and Cyclical Factors

Our revenues are affected only slightly by the traditional U.S. vacation seasons, such as July, August and
December. Our revenues may be more adversely affected by cyclical factors, such as financial market downturns,
problems or recessions in-the U.S. or global economies. These downturns may cause investor concern, which has
historically resulted in fewer transactions and less investing through broker/dealers such as Summit, thereby
reducing our revenues and potential profits. Such conditions would present risk in that we would need to raise
additional capital to offset related significant reductions in revenues.

Competition

We encounter intense competition in all aspects of our business. In general, we compete directly with other
providers of financial services focused on meeting the needs of individual investors. Some of the strongest
competition comes from companies who have greater marketing, financial and technical resources than ours. These
competitors can offer a wider range of services and financial products than we can. Some of our competitors also
have greater name recognition and moré extensive client bases. Firms such as Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc., Citigroup
Global Markets Holdings, Inc. (Salomon Smith Barney), Morgan Stanley, Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. and Edward
D. Jones & Co., L.P. have collectively garnered a significant percentage. of the overall retail ﬁnanc1a1 services
industry. Furthermore, we compete with numerous regional and local securities firms, as well as with- firms that
provide online trading, such as E*Trade Group, Inc. and Ameritrade Holding Corporation. Additionally, there has
recently been increasing competition from other sources, such as commercial banks, insurance companies, and
accounting and consulting firms that have entered the securities industry. We believe that the principal factors
affecting competition in the securities industry are the quahty and ability of professional personnel and relative
prices of services and products offered.

In addition to competing for clients, we compete with other financial services providers to attract and retain
experienced and productive investment professionals, especially those firms offering independent affiliate programs
such as Raymond James & Associates and LPL Financial Services. To date, we have not undertaken any significant
marketing initiatives with respect to recruiting registered representatives. Rather, we have attracted registered
representatives as a result of the extensive relationships developed by senior management throughout their years of
involvement in the financial services industry, as well as through referrals and the use of both in-house and outside
recruiters.  We have also not undertaken any marketing efforts designed to attract retail customers. Rather, we rely
on each registered representative to attract his or her own clientele, which most typically occurs through referrals



from other clients. Additionally, many of our registered representatives hold seminars to educate potential clients
about various investment opportunities.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we employed 18 full-time people, consisting of 5 in management and 13 in
general staff positions. As of December 31, 2002, there were approximately 100 registered representatives licensed
with the firm, the majority of whom are engaged by us as independent contractors, although some are engaged as
employees (including in an operational capacity). None of our employees are represented by a labor union or are
subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Regulation

The securities industry in the United States is subject to extensive regulation under various federal and state
laws and regulations. While the SEC administers most of the federal securities laws, much of the regulation of the
securities industry is subject to various self-regulatory organizations such as the NASD. The self-regulatory
organizations, among other things, promulgate regulations and provide oversight in the following areas:

Sales practices;

Trade practices among broker-dealers;

Capital requirements;

Record keeping; and

¢ Conduct of employees and affiliates of member organizations.

The SEC and the self regulatory organizations also have the authority to conduct administrative
proceedings which can result in the censure, fine, suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer, its employees or
officers. Also, new legislation, changes in the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC or self regulatory
organizations, or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules often directly affect the
operation and profitability of broker-dealers. The stated purpose of much of the regulation of broker-dealers is the
protection of customers and the securities markets, rather than the protection of creditors and shareholders of broker-
dealers.

Subsequent Events

On January 2, 2003, the Company acquired, in an asset purchase agreement, the Boca Raton branch of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (the ‘Branch”). The Branch was an affiliated retail branch office of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (“Wachovia”), with approximately 22 registered representatives
conducting retail brokerage business. The purchase price was approximately $1,800,000, payable to Wachovia over
four years. The purchase price contemplated the signing of an employment agreement with each of the registered
representatives. Management believes that the acquisition will expand its market presence and overall customer
base. :

In March 2003, the Company completed a private offering of its common stock that it commenced in
October 2002. In that offering, the Company raised approximately $3 million with the sale of approximately
12,000,000 shares of common stock. The investors in that private placement have certain piggy-back registration
rights and the Company is obligated to file with the SEC within the next 60 days (subject to extension or delay up to
180 days under certain circumstances), a registration statement registering the private investors’ common shares for
subsequent re-sale. However, the shares are subject to a lock-up that provides that one-half of the shares may be
sold commencing six months after the effective date of the registration statement and all common shares may be
sold commencing 12 months after the effective date of the registration statement.




Risk Factors

We operate in a rapidly changing environment that involves numerous nsks some of which are beyond our
control. The following discussion highlights some of these risks.

‘We have had recent losses. We realized net losses for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
of $1,619,010 and $547,748 respectively, and we cannot assure you that we will be profitable in the near future or
that our revenues will grow. Additionally, our revenues and profitability have been, and may continue to be,
negatively impacted by current economic conditions as well as international political unrest.

Our business could be harmed by market volatility, declines in general economic conditions and
other securities industry risks. Our revenues are derived primarily from securities brokerage and related services,
and we expect this biisiness to continue to account for almost all of our revenues. We, like other securities firms, are
directly affected by economic and political conditions, including, but not limited to the following:

e acts of war, terrorism and other political unrest;
e  broad trends in business and finance, and
e changes in the conditions of the securities markets in which our customers trade.

A downturn in these markets such as we have experienced recently adversely affects our operating results.
In major stock market declines, many firms in the securities industry suffer financial losses, and the level of
individual investor trading activity decreases after these events. When trading volume is low, our profitability is
adversely affected because a significant portion of our costs does not vary with revenue. For these reasons, severe
market fluctuations have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Some
of our competitors with more diversified business lines might withstand such a downturn in the securities industry
better than we would.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and compliance failures could adversely affect our
business. The securities industry in the jurisdictions in which we operate is subject to extensive regulation covering
all aspects of the securities business. The various governmental authorities and industry self-regulatory
organizations that supervise and regulate us generally have broad enforcement powers to censure, fine, issue cease-
and-desist orders or suspend or expel us or any of our officers or employees who violate applicable laws or
regulations. Our ability to comply with all applicable laws and rules is largely dependent on our establishment and
maintenance of compliance and reporting systems, as well as our ability to attract and retain qualified compliance
and other personnel. We could be subject to disciplinary or other regulatory or legal actions in the future due to
noncompliance. In addition, it is possible that any past noncompliance could subject us to future civil lawsuits, the
outcome of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

There is considerable fluctuation during any year and from year-to-year in the volume of transactions we
must process. We record transactions and post our books on a daily basis. Operations personnel monitor operations
to determine compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Failure to keep current and accurate books and
records can render us liable to disciplinary action by governmental and self-regulatory authorities, as well as to
claims by our clients.

In addition, we use the Internet to provide information to our registered representatives and, to a lesser -
extent, our customers. Due to the increasing popularity of the Internet, it is possible that new laws and regulations
may be adopted dealing with such issues as user privacy, content and pricing. Such laws and regulations might
increase our cost of using, or limit our ability to use, the Internet. In addition, the growth of the Internet as a means -
of conducting international business has raised many legal issues regarding, among other things, the circumstances
in which countries or other jurisdictions have the right to regulate Internet services that may be available to their
citizens from service providers located elsewhere. In many cases, there are no laws, regulations, judicial decisions
or governmental interpretations that clearly resolve these issues. This uncertainty may adversely affect our ability to
use the Internet to expand our international operations, and creates the risk that we could be subject to disciplinary
sanctions or other penalties for failure to comply with applicable laws or'regulations.




We need to comply with stringent capital requirements. Many of the regulatory agencies, securities
exchanges and other industry self-regulatory organizations that regulate us have stringent rules with respect to the
maintenance of specific levels of net capital by securities broker-dealers. Net capital is the net worth of a broker or
dealer, less deductions for certain types of assets. If we fail to maintain the required net capital, we may be subject
to suspension or revocation of our licenses, which could ultimately lead to us being liquidated. If such net capital
rules are changed or expanded, or if there is an unusually large charge against net capital, we might be required to
limit or discontinue those portions of our business that require the intensive use of capital. A large operating loss or
charge against net capital could adversely affect our ability to expand or even maintain our present levels of
business. As of December 31, 2002, we had net capital of $1,377,156, which was $1,327,156 in excess of our
minimum net capital requirement of $50,000.

We face substantial competition which could reduce our market share and harm our financial
performance. All aspects of our business are highly competitive. We compete directly with national and regional
full service broker-dealers and, to a lesser extent, with discount brokers, investment advisors and certain commercial
banks. The financial services industry has become considerably more concentrated as numerous securities firms
have either ceased operations or have been acquired by or merged into other firms. These mergers and acquisitions
have increased competition from these firms, many of which have significantly greater equity capital and financial
and other resources than we do. With respect to retail brokerage activities, certain regional firms with which we
compete have operated in certain markets longer than we have and have established long-standing client
relationships. In addition, we expect competition from commercial banks to increase because of recent and
anticipated legislative and regulatory initiatives in the United States to remove or relieve certain restrictions on
commercial banks’ securities activities. We also compete with others in the financial services industry in recruiting
registered representatives and new employees as well as retaining current personnel, and we could be adversely
affected in the event we were to lose registered representatives who either individually or in the aggregate accounted
foré significant percentage of our revenues.

We expect to face increasing competition from companies offering electronic brokerage services, which is
a rapidly developing industry. These competitors may have lower costs or provide fewer services, and may offer
certain customers more attractive pricing or other terms, than we offer. In addition, disintermediation may occur as
issuers attempt to sell their securities directly to purchasers, including sales using electronic media such as the
Internet. To the extent that issuers and purchasers of securities transact business without the assistance of financial
intermediaries like us, our operating results could be adversely affected.

‘Failure to introduce new services and products in a timely manner may affect our ability to compete
effectively. Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to develop and enhance our services and
products. We operate in a very competitive industry in which the ability to develop and deliver advanced services
through the Internet and other channels is a key competitive factor. There are significant technical risks in the
development of new or enhanced services and products, including the risk that we will be unable to:

effectively use new technologies; ‘
¢ adapt our services and products to emerging industry standards; or
e . develop, introduce and market enhanced or new services and products.

Historically, we have been able to develop and introduce enhanced or new products and services in
response to market and customer requirements and emerging industry standards. However, if in the future we are
unable to develop and introduce enhanced or new services and products quickly enough to respond to market or
customer requirements or to comply with emerging industry standards, or if these services and products do not
achieve market acceptance, our business, financial condition and operating results could be materially adversely
affected.

We may be unable to hire, integrate or retain qualified personnel. Most aspects of our business are
dependent on highly skilled individuals. We devote considerable resources to recruiting, training and compensating
these individuals. In addition, one component of our growth strategy is to increase market penetration by recruiting
experienced registered representatives. In connection-with our recruiting efforts, we rely significantly on the
extensive relationships developed by senior management, particularly Marshall T. Leeds, through their years of



involvement in the financial services industry, in addition to relying on referrals and the use of both in-house and
outside recruiters. We cannot assure-that these recruiting efforts will be successful or, if successful, that they will
enhance our business, results of operations, or financial condition.

Competition for key personnel is intense. . We cannot assure that losses of key personnel due to such
competition, or for other reasons, will not occur in the future. The loss of any key employee, particularly Marshall
T. Leeds, our-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, could materially and adversely affect our operating results.

Other than Mr. Leeds, we do-not have employment agreements with any othér members of senior
management. We attempt to retain employees with incentives such as incentive compensation plans, including stock
options conditioned on continued employment. These incentives, however, may be insufficient in light of the
increasing competition for experienced professionals in the securities industry, particularly if our stock price were to
decline, or fail to appréciate sufficiently. If that happened our benefit plans m1ght no longer be a competitive
incentive for our key employees to stay w1th us. A

Our rapid growth has p‘lacéd significant demands on our management-and other resources and is
likely to continue. To manage the currently anticipated growth of our business, we will need to attract, hire and
retain highly skilled and motivated officer§ and employeés. In particular, we expect that a need for increased
staffing will continue for service personnel to support the expansion of our branch offices. We will also need to
continue improving our existing systems, and/or implement new systems, for transaction processing, operational and
financial management and training, integrating and managing our growing employee base. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to attract the employees or conduct the system improvements necessary to manage this growth
effectively or that we will.be able to achieve the rate of growth we have experienced in-the past.

We may not be able to grow as planned. As part of our long-term growth strategy, we fecruit individual
registered representatives and we evaluate the acquisition of other firms or assets that would complement or expand
our business in attractive service markets or that would broaden our customer relationships. We cannot assure you
that we will be successful in our recruiting efforts or that we will be able to identify suitable acquisition candidates -
available for sale at reasonable prices or that we will be able to consummiate any acquisition. Further, future
acquisitions may further increase our leverage or, if we issue equity securities to pay for the acquisitions, our
shareholders could suffer dilution of their interests. ' ‘

--We may have difficulty integrating businesses and/or generating acceptable returns from future
acquisitions. Even if we are able to identify acquisition candidates and complete the acquisition on terms favorable
to us, we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully integrate any acquired business into our operations.
The success of any completed acquisition will depend in large measure on our ability to intégrate the operations of
the acquired business with our operations and otherwise to maintain and improve the results of operations of the
acquired business. Acquisitions-involve a number of spec1al rlsks and present financial, managerial and operatlonal
challenges, some of which mclude ¥ C :

diversion of management’s attention;
unanticipated events or circumstances;
existence of unknown liabilities;
potential disputes with sellers; and »
adverse effects on our reported earnings per share in the event acqurred mtanglble net '
assets, 1f any, become 1mpa1red

ob

" An acquisition increases the risk that aﬁy'businesé may lose customers or employees, including key. "
employees of the acquired business. An acquired business could under perform relative to our expectations and we
may not realize the value we expect from the acquisition. Adverse market conditions or poor investment or other
performance by an acquired company may adversely affect fevenue. We could also experience financial or other
setbacks if an acquired company has problems of Wthh we are not aware. Although we. conduct due diligence
reviéws of potential acquisition candidates, we may not identify all material liabilities or risks related to acquisition
candidates. Some or all of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and




results of operations. Further, future acquisitions may further increase our leverage or, if we issue equity securities
to pay for the acquisitions, our shareholders could suffer dilution of their interests.

Our exposure to possible securities litigation could adversely affect our business. From time to time
we are engaged in various legal and regulatory proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Many aspects
of the securities brokerage business involve substantial risks of liability. In recent years, there has been an
increasing incidence of litigation involving the securities brokerage industry, including class action and other suits
that generally seek substantial damages, including in some cases punitive damages. We currently maintain errors
and omissions insurance, the proceeds of which may help to reduce the amount we may otherwise be required to pay
with respect to certain types of claims. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain errors and
omissions insurance in the future. If it can be obtained, the price for such insurance may be unreasonable. Even if
such insurance is in force, the amount of any award may exceed the maximum coverage provided by such insurance,
in which case we will be required to pay any uncovered portion. While it is not possible to determine with certainty
the outcome of these matters, we are of the opinion the eventual resolution of such proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or operating results. Any such litigation brought in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our business relies heavily on computers and other electronic systems and capacity constraints and
failures of these systems could harm our business. As our business expands, we face risks relating to the need to
expand and upgrade our transaction processing systems, network infrastructure and other aspects of our technology.
While many of our systems are designed to accommodate additional growth without redesign or replacement, we
may nevertheless need to make significant investments in additional hardware and software to accommodate growth.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to predict accurately the timing or rate of such growth, or expand and
upgrade our systems and infrastructure on a timely basis. Addmonally, our business may be negatively impacted by
acts of cyberterrorism.

We may not be able to completely protect ourselves from various forms of business interruption.
Although we maintain business interruption insurance, the net proceeds from such insurance may not be sufficient to
cover lost revenues and earnings. Additionally, in the future, it may not be possible to obtain business interruption
insurance on terms that management deems acceptable, especially if such interruption relates to acts of terror,
including acts of cyberterrorism.

We depend on our headquarters and operations center for continued operation of our business. A disaster
directly affecting our headquarters or operations center may have a material adverse impact on our ability to
continue to operate our business without interruption. Although we have disaster recovery programs in place, there
can be no assurance that these will be sufficient to mitigate the harm that may result from such a disaster. In
addition, insurance and other safeguards might only partially reimburse us for our losses. Furthermore, we rely on
third parties to perform certain back office and trade execution functions on our behalf. In the event these third
parties are unable to provide these services, including as a result of a natural disaster or such other event that results
in an interruption of their business activities, our operations could be materially negatively impacted.

We may have to indemnify our directors and officers for certain actions. Our Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation require us to indemnify (to the fullest extent permitted under Florida law) each of our
directors and officers against liabilities imposed upon them (including reasonable amounts paid in settlement) and
expenses incurred by them in connection with any claim made against them or any action, suit or proceeding to
which they may be a party by reason of their being or having been directors or officers of our company. The
foregoing provisions may reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and may discourage or deter
shareholders or management from suing directors for breaches of their duty of care, even though such an action, if
successful, might otherwise benefit our shareholders and us. We maintain officers and directors liability insurance
coverage in the amount of $1 million. There can be no assurance that such insurance will be available in the future,
or that if available, it will be available on terms that are acceptable to us. Furthermore, there can be no assurance
that the insurance coverage provided will be sufficient to cover the amount of any judgment awarded against an
officer or director (either individually or in the aggregate). Consequently, if such judgment exceeds the coverage
under the policy, we may be forced to pay such difference.
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PART II
Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

When used in conjunction in the following discussions, the words ‘believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cause results to differ materially from those projected, including, but
not limited to, those set forth in “Factors That May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Our Stock” of this
Item 6.

Overview of the Company

" Summit is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), the
Nationial Association of Securities Dealers Regulation, Inc. ("NASDR"), the Municipal Securities Rule Making
Board ("MSRB"), anid the Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") and is licensed to conduct its
brokerage activities in 46 states. SFG, our investment advisory firm, is registered or eligible to conduct business as -
an investment advisor in 23 states.

‘In May 2002, a controlling interest in Summit Brokerage was acquired by Marshall T. Leeds, who assurmed
the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at that time. Shortly thereafter, we began a private placement of
our common stock, which resulted in the receipt of gross proceeds of approximately $3,000,000 as of the closing of
the offering in March 2003. Concurrent with our efforts to raise capital, we undertook several measures designed to
not only enhance our revenue (through the addition of registered representatives, both individually as well as
through the acquisition of assets of other firms), but also to improve our ability to more efficiently and effectively
service our registered representatives. Toward that end, in 2002 we hired several new employees, including
members of senior management, and leased additional office space in Boca Raton, Florida to house these
employees. We also undertook improvements to our information technology systems. In January 2003, we acquired
the Boca Raton branch office of Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc., which branch generated, in the 12
month period prior to its acquisition, approximately $5.6 million in gross revenue.

We have a history of operating losses. In 2002 and 2001, we reported losses of $1,619,010 and $547,748,
respectively. In general, our financial results can be impacted by a number of factors, including our ability to recruit
and retain registered representatives as well as general market conditions and volatility, which are often expressions
of investor confidence. In periods of waning investor confidence, such as 2002, our revenues suffer as our clients
make fewer investments. Furthermore, our results during that period were negatively impacted by the growth in,
and improvements to our infrastructure undertaken in 2002. As we continue to grow, we may also continue to have
increases in‘expenses-associated with growth such as increased personnel and office space costs. There is no
assurance that any increased revenue from growth will be sufficient to offset increased expenses.

Our revenues consist primarily of commissions and fee income earned from securities transactions and
related activities, such as fees for managing a client’s assets (asset managed accounts). The majority of our
commissions have traditionally come from the sale of mutual fund shares and annuity products. The following table
reflects the various sources of revenue and the percentage of total revenues for each of the last two fiscal years:
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2002 2001

Mutual funds $2,031,102 33% $3,171,414 45%
Annuities $1,477,165 24% $1,902,848 27%
Insurance $1,169,422 19% $1,550,469 22%
Equities $ 861,680 14% $ 211,428 3%
Registered Investment Advisory Fees
(D) $ 369,291 6% $ 140,952 2%
Miscellaneous (2) $ 246,194 4% $ 70476 1%
Total 56154854 100% $7047587  100%

(1) Represents management fees derived from managed accounts.
(2) Miscellaneous includes interest and other income.

By their nature, our business activities are highly competitive and are subject to, among other things,
general economic and market conditions, including the volatility of the trading markets and the attractiveness of
various forms of investment products. Consequently, our revenues and net income are generally subject to
substantial positive and negative fluctuations due to a variety of factors that cannot be predicted with great certainty
and may result in revenues and net income in any particular period that may not be representative of full-year results
and may vary significantly from period to period.

Furthermore, our mix of business in any particular quarter will be impacted by several additional factors,
including the types of investments sold by newly added registered representatives to our Company, many of whom
specialize in the sale of specific types of investment products, and the preferences of their customers. While
economic conditions in 2002 suppressed investments generally, as is reflected in the above table, our commission .
revenues derived from the sale of equities (i.e., trades in individual stocks for customers) and registered investment
advisory fees (i.e., fees from asset managed accounts) increased over 2001. We believe those increases are
attributable to the business conducted by registered representatives we added in 2002, as well as a shift in investor
preferences.

Our business plan is focused on increasing our network of affiliated registered representatives, through
recruiting efforts as well as acquisitions of assets of other broker/dealer firms. Our recruiting efforts are directed
toward the addition of registered representatives who also serve as financial planners (who sell primarily annuities,
insurance and mutual funds) as well as registered representatives who focus primarily on equities and fixed income
products. As we add new registered representatives, our revenue mix from period to period (e.g., commissions
received from transactions in individual equities, mutual funds, annuities, etc.) may vary disproportionately and
perhaps contrary to the then current market trends. Thus, for example, our commission revenues from transactions
in individual equities or fees earned on managed accounts may show a significant increase in a particular period or
periods as a result of the focus of new registered representatives we have hired and their customer base, and such
increase may not be indicative of general market trends or a change in the focus of the Company. On the other
hand, if the new registered representatives that are hired focus on annuities, for a period of time we may show
increased revenue from sales of that product over sales of individual equities or mutual funds. As we continue to
add registered representatives, we anticipate that our business mix will constantly change.

Thus, in addition to the macroscopic affects on revenues such as overall trends in economic and market
conditions and investor confidence generally, fluctuations in our revenue between periods may or may not follow
such trends. Given our current size, it is possible that fluctuations in our mix of business may not mirror those
experienced by the financial services industry as a whole. This is because we may add, or lose, registered
representatives who generate a significant amount of commissions from the sale of a particular type of investment
product. As we grow larger, we anticipate that the ability of any new branch office to impact the overall revenue
mix will be diminished, as it is with larger firms when they hire new registered representatives. However, due to
our size, it is possible that the addition of new registered representatives (and their customer base) who focus on
certain product(s) over other products will be a factor in causing fluctuations in our revenue and/or revenue mix
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from period to period which may not be representative of full-year results or reflective of general market or
economic trends.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenues decreased in fiscal 2002 by $892,733, or (12.7%), to $6,154,854 from $7,047,587 in fiscal 2001.
This decrease was primarily due to the downturn in the economy and the related impact on the financial markets,
which in turn reduced investor activity and lowered our revenues. However, while revenues decreased overall due
to general economic and market conditions, the commissions that we earned from executing trades in equities and
the fees that we earned from managed accounts increased. We believe such increases are due, in significant part, to
the focus of new registered representatives that we added during the year, and the focus of their particular customer
base. As discussed above, we anticipate that while we grow, the addition of new registered representatives (and
their customers) who focus on certain products over other products will be a factor in causing fluctuations in our
revenue and/or revenue mix from period to period which may not be representative of full-year results or reflective
of general market or economic trends.

Expenses increased in fiscal 2002 by $178,529, or 2.4%, to $7,773,864 from $7,595,335 in fiscal 2001.
The higher expenses were largely attributable to the increase in legal and professional fees, due in part to the stock
transaction as described under the Change of Control section in Item 11 below. These costs increased by $145,642,
or 92%, to $303,265 from $157,623 in fiscal 2001.

. Commissions decreased to $5,275,867 during the year, which represents a decrease of $587,826, or 10%,
over the $5,863,693 reported for 2001. In general, commissions and clearing costs are directly related to commission
revenue, and will typically increase, or decrease, proportionately as commission revenue rises or declines.
Commissions as a percentage of commission revenue for 2002 were 87% versus 85% for 2001.

Employee compensation and benefits increased to $917,062 during 2002, which represents an increase of
$16,085, or 2%, over 2001. This increase was due primarily to the addition of new employees, and their related
benefit costs, during 2002, offset by a decrease of $75,769 in employee stock based compensation.

Occupancy and equipment cost increased to $188,253 during 2002, which represents an increase of
$18,268, or 11%, over $169,985 reported for 2001. This increase was largely due to an increase in rent expense,
resulting from our need to acquire additional space in Boca Raton for certain of our operations.

Communications costs decreased by $13,279, or 10%, to $116,445 in 2002 from $129,724 in 2001. The
principal reason for this overall decrease was a decline in our quote service expenses, which decrease was partially
offset by increases in our telephone expense.

Professional fees increased by $486,817, or 163%, to $785,486 in 2002 from $298,669 in 2001.
Contributing to this increase in fees was an increase in legal fees of approximately $100,000, which increase was
due primarily to the acquisition of a controlling interest in the Company by Marshall Leeds. Professional fees also
increased as a result of an increase in consulting costs by approximately $140,000. In 2002, we relied heavily on the
use of consultants, as opposed to employees, in our efforts to improve upon our infrastructure as well as for other
purposes. During 2002, accounting fees also increased, by approximately $40,000, as did licensing and registration
fees, by approximately $90,000. In addition, non-employee stock based compensation increased approximately
$160,000. This overall increase was offset by a decrease in recruiting costs of approximately $44,000.

Other operating expenses increased to $490,751 during 2002, which represents an increase of $258,464, or
111%, over $232,287 reported for 2001. Several of the items that we include within other operating expenses
experienced increases, including contract labor costs, which increased by approximately $45,000, and costs
associated with being a public company, which increased by approximately $33,000. Furthermore, we experienced
increases in the costs incurred in connection with certain meetings that we hold for our registered representatives, as
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well as for office supplies and printing, both increases of which approximated $30,000. We also incurred
approximately $40,000 more in insurance expense during 2002 than in 2001.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2000

Revenues increased in fiscal 2001 by $67,901, or 1.0%, to $7,047,587 from $6,979,686 in fiscal 2000.
This small increase was primarily due to the downturn in the economy and the related impact on the financial
markets, which in turn reduced investor activity and lowered our revenues. In addition, the events of September 11,
2001 caused substantial disruptions in our industry and in our business as well. Specifically, our revenues for the
third and fourth quarters were negatively affected by these circumstances.

Expenses decreased in fiscal 2001 by $29,710, or .4%, to $7,595,335 from $7,625,045 in fiscal 2000. The
reduction was largely attributable to lower operating costs, specifically the reduction in payroll related costs due to
personnel layoffs following the events of September 11, 2001. Total operating expenses decreased by $292,682 to
$1,749,167 in 2001 from $2,041,849 in 2000.

Non-cash expenses for amortization of uneamned stock compensation decreased in fiscal 2001 by $147,638,
to $201,390 from $349,028 in fiscal 2000.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our cash flows from operations have been negative and therefore have been funded by stock
issuances. There can he no assurance that in the future we will not need to raise additional capital in order to meet
operating costs. We are presently attempting to increase revenue primarily through the opening and acquisition of
new branch offices either by hiring registered representatives through our affiliate program or by acquiring branch
offices of other broker/dealer firms. Because each of our affiliated branch offices is independent (with the exception
of the Boca Raton branch), the registered representative who owns that branch is solely responsible for the payment
of all expenses associated with the operation of that branch, including rent, utilities, furniture, equipment, stock
quotation machines, and general office supplies. Consequently, we believe we can open a significant number of
branch offices with little increase in our expenses. To the extent we acquire a branch office, we may be required to
pay consideration to the firm that sold that branch to us. Other than the acquisition of the Boca Raton branch, we
have not, to date, acquired any branch offices from other firms. We will evaluate, on a case-by-case basis, the
economics of each possible acquisition to determine its attractiveness to us. We do not employ a single formula for
determining the attractiveness of a particular acquisition. Rather, we consider, among other things, the total gross
revenue generated by that office, the mix of investment products sold, and the number of registered representatives
affiliated with that branch.

On October 14, 2002, we commenced a common stock private offering of up to 20,000,000 shares of our
common stock to accredited investors at a purchase price of $.25 per share. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we received $2,050,000 in cash proceeds from the sale of 8,200,000 shares of common stock related to the
private placement. This offering closed in March 2003 and at March 19, 2003, we had received $3,010,000 in cash
proceeds from the sale of 12,040,000 shares of common stock related to the private placement,

Our net cash used in operations was $(1,190,711) for the year ended December 31, 2002 and $(263,535) for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The $927,176 decrease in cash flows was primarily the result of our net loss of
$(1,619,010) for fiscal 2002.

Cash flows from financing activities were $2,766,169 in fiscal year 2002 and $176,983 in fiscal year 2001.
The $2,589,186 increase in cash resulted from our common stock private offering, as well as from the stock

transaction as described under the Change of Control discussion in Item 11 below.

During 2002, we issued 100,000 shares of our common stock for services, which we valued at $66,000.
We did not issue stock for services in 2001.
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- During the year ended December 31, 2002, Marshall T. Leeds, the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, exercised an option for 1,400,000 shares of common stock at $.25 per share, for gross proceeds to
the Company of $350,000. ’

Under the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Leeds may receive 3% of the first 12 months’ gross
production generated by brokers recruited by him who remain with the company for at least 12 months. As of
December 31, 2002, Mr. Leeds and the company agreed to forego payment for any production generated in 2002 by
brokers recruited by him. Accordingly, no liability was recorded at December 31, 2002. Beginning in 2003, Mr.
Leeds may begin to take such overrides. At the present time, to the extent we cannot predict with any certainty the
level of gross production to be generated by those registered representatives recruited by Mr. Leeds, if any. We
cannot estimate the potential impact the payment of such overrides may have on our liquidity or operations,
although we do not expect such impact to be material.

Significant Business Relationships

On January 26, 1994, we entered into a clearing agreement with First Clearing Corporation, a subsidiary of
First Union Bank (formerly Wheat First Securities, Inc.), to execute securities orders and maintain accounts for
clients on behalf of our company.

On November 1, 2000, we entered into a second clearing agreement with Dain Correspondent Services, a
subsidiary of Dain Rauscher Incorporated, to execute securities orders and maintain accounts for clients on behalf of
our company.

Item 7. Financial Statements.

The financial statements required by this item are set forth on pages F-1 through F-18 and are incorporated
herein by this reference.

PART III
Item 10. Executive Compensation
The following table sets forth all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid for all services rendered to
Summit during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, and 2002 by our Chief Executive Officer and any
executive officer who received compensation in excess of $100,000 during those years (each a “Named Executive.

Officer”).

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

. Long-Term
Annual Compensation”  Compensation Awards
Name And Principal Fiscal Securities Underlying All Other
Position Year Salary Bonus Options Compensation
Marshall T. Leeds 12/31/02 ~ $35,000 -0- 7,000,000% -0-
Chairman and Chief 12/31/01 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Executive Officer 12/31/00 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Richard Parker 12/31/02 $73,627 -0- - 952,870® $134,742©
Vice Chairman, President 12/31/01 $77,675 -0- 91,860% $1,539
and Chief Operating Officer 12/31/00 $45,756 -0- 404,440 -0-

(1) The amounts reflected in the above table do not include any amounts for perquisites and other personal benefits extended to
the Named Executive Officer. The aggregate amount of such compensation for the named executive officer is less than 10%
of the total annual salary and bonus.

(2) Represents 7,000,000 options granted in 2002 that are exercisable at $.25 per share until December 31, 2007. These options
were granted outside of the company’s 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan. The closing price of a share of the company’s

15




common stock as reported on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board on March 15, 2002, the last date the stock was traded
before the option was granted, was $.20 per share.

(3) Represents (a) 400,000 options granted in 2002 and which vest over two years, have an exercise price of $.50 per share, and
expire on December 31, 2007; (b) 500,000 options granted in 2002 that are exercisable at $.10 per share until December 31,
2007, and (¢) 52,870 options granted in 2002 that are exercisable at $.50 per share until March 21, 2012. The options for
400,000 shares and 500,000 shares were granted outside of the company’s 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan. The closing
price of a share of the company’s common stock as reported on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board on March 15, 2002, the
last date the stock was traded before the options were granted, was $.20 per share.

(4) Represents 10,000 options granted in 2001 exercisable at $1.00 per share until December 31, 2011, and 81,860 options
granted in 2001 exercisable at $.50 per share until December 31, 2011.

(5) Represents options granted in 2000 exercisable at $2.50 per share until 2010, 394,440 of which replaced options granted in
1999.

(6) Represents commissions paid to Mr. Parker in connection with trades executed by him on behalf of his clients.

Stock Options Granted in Fiscal 2002

The following table sets forth certain information concerning grants of options made during fiscal 2002 to the
Named Executive Officers.

Percent
Number of of Total
Securities Options Exercise  Fair Market
Underlying Granted to or Base Value
Options Employees Price on Date of Expiration
Name Grated(#) in 2002 ($/Sh) Grant Date
Marshall T. Leeds ........c.coooveninnee 7,000,000(1) 70.2%% $0.25 $.20 12/31/2007
Richard Parker.......ccocoovivivivcnnnn, 500,000(1) 5.0% 0.10 $.20 12/31/2007
452,870(1) 4.5% 0.50 $.20 12/31/2007

(1} These options were granted outside of the company’s 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan.

Aggregate Stock Option Exercises and Year-End Option Value Table

The following table sets forth certain information concerning option exercises in fiscal 2002, the number of
stock options held by the Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2002 and the value (based on the fair market
value of a share of stock at fiscal year-end) of in-the-money options outstanding as of such date.

Number of Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Number of Options Held at In-the-Money Options
Shares Acquired Value Fiscal Year-End(#) at Fiscal Year-End®
Name on Exercise (#) Realized($)" Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Marshall T. Leeds ........ccccoevvvennnnn. 1,400,000 $1,064,000 5,600,000 - $4,256,000 -
Richard Parker .....c..c.ccoovvivvvvrnine, - - 500,000 - $ 455,000 --
- - 52,870 400,000 $ 26,963 $204,000
- -- - 496,300 -- -

(1) Options are in-the-money if the fair market value of the common stock exceeds the exercise price of the option. The closing sale price for
Summit Brokerage’s common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Trading and Market Services on December 31, 2002 was $1.01 per share.
Value is calculated by multiplying (a) the difference between $1.01 and the option exercise price by (b) the number of shares of common stock
underlying the option.

Employment Agreements

The Company entered into an employment agreement with Marshall T. Leeds dated March 22, 2002
pursuant to which he was employed by the Company as its Director of Recruiting in connection with its broker
recruitment efforts and other strategic matters. In connection with his employment, Mr. Leeds received an option
exercisable for 7,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $.25 per share pursuant to an option
agreement dated March 22, 2002. On May 22, 2002, his employment agreement was amended and restated for a
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term of two years and pursuant to which Mr. Leeds became the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chairman.
The employment agreement, as amended and restated, provides that, in consideration for Mr. Leeds’ services, he is
to be paid a base salary of $50,000 and will be reviewed annually. He will receive an override or fee equal to 3% of
the first twelve month's gross production generated by brokers recruited by him who remain with the Company for
at least 12 months. Mr. Leeds will also receive commission income generated by him for his production as a
registered representative with the Company. The agreement provides for a 12-month severance arrangement upon
termination without cause or in connection with a-change of control, as such terms are defined in the employment
agreement. Mr. Leeds has the right to terminate the employment agreement upon 60-days notice to the Company.
The agreement also prohibits Mr. Leeds from disclosing or using for his benefit confidential information about the
Company during and after his employment with the Company. Further, during his employment with the Company
and for a 12-month period after termination of employment, he may not divert, attempt to divert or solicit any
prospective or existing customers of the Company for the benefit of any competitor of the company or employ, hire
or seek to employ or hire an employee or independent registered representative of the Company, or otherwise
directly or indirectly indiice or solicit such persons to leave their employment with the Company. Mr. Leeds’
employment agreement was subsequently modified to include a non-competition agreement pursuant to which Mr.
Leeds may not compete with the company during the term of his employment with Company or within the 12 month
period after termination or expiration of his employment.

Effective May 22, 2002, the Company entered into a two-year employment agreement with Richard Parker
who is the Company's President, Chief Operating Officer and Vice Chairman. The employment agreement provides
that, in consideration for Mr. Parker's services, he is to be paid a base salary of $50,000 initially which will be
subject to increase upon specified Company performance goals being met. He will receive an override or fee equal
to 3% of the first twelve month's gross production generated by brokers recruited by him or his affiliate, Educational
Seminars of America, Inc., who remain with the Company for at least 12 months. Mr. Parker will also receive
commission income generated by him for his production as a registered representative with the Company. The
agreement provides for severance in the amount of his base salary as of the date of termination, payable over 12
months upon termination without cause or in connection with a change of control, as such terms are defined in the
employment agreement. Mr. Parker has the right to terminate the employment agreement upon 60-days notice to the
Company. Mr. Parker received an immediately exercisable option for 500,000 shares of the Company's common
stock at an exercise price of $.10 per share, and an option for 400,000 shares at an exercise price of $.50 per share,
vesting over three years, pursuant to option agreements dated March 22, 2002. The agreement also prohibits Mr.
Parker from disclosing or using for his benefit confidential information about the Company during and after his
employment with the Company. Further, during his employment with the Company and for a 12-month period after
termination of employment, he may not divert, attempt to divert or solicit any prospective or existing customers of
the Company for the benefit of any competitor of the company or employ, hire or seek to employ or hire an
employee or independent registered representative of the Company, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce or
solicit such persons to leave their employment with the Company. Mr. Parker received an immediately exercisable
option for 500,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $.10 per share, and an option for 400,000

shares at an exercise price of $.50 per share, vesting over three years, pursuant to option agreements dated March 22,
2002. :

2000 Incentive Compensation Plan

Our 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan™) was approved by our Board of Directors and
shareholders in 2000:; Our Plan is currently administered by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Plan provides
for the grant of options (incentive and non-statutory), stock appreciation rights and restricted stock to officers,
directors, employees and independent contractors capable of contributing to the Company’s performance. The
Company has reserved an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares of common stock for grants under the Plan, pursuant to an
amendment to the Plan approved by the shareholders in August 2002. Incentive stock options may be granted only
to employees eligible to receive them under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. As of December 31,
2002, the Company had outstanding options (only non-statutory) for a total of 2,218,513 shares of the Company’s
common stock, leaving a total of 1,781,487 shares available for future grants. Options have a term of ten years,
unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan and applicable stock option agreements. The
exercise prices of the options range from $.50 per share to $2.50 per share, and generally have scheduled vesting.
Upon expiration of unexercised options, the unpurchased shares subject to such options will again be available for
purposes of the Plan. ' '
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Options Granted Outside of Our 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding options to purchase an aggregate of 7,653,646 shares of
common stock with a range of exercise prices from $.10 to $2.50 per share. . Options for a total 6,500,000 shares
expire on December 31, 2007, unless terminated earlier in accordance with their terms. All other non-plan options
have a term of ten years from the date of grant unless otherwise terminated in accordance with their terms. Of such
outstanding options granted outside of our Plan, options for approximately 6,961,701 shares are immediately
exercisable as of December 31, 2002.

Director Compensation

In serving on our Board, directors receive compensation of $350 for each meeting attended, as well as the
grant of stock options from time to time at the discretion of our Board. Directors are also reimbursed for their
reasonable expenses incurred in attending Board or Committee meetings. Additional fees and options may be
granted for chairing special committees, such as the Audit Committee. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had
granted options for a total of 176,000 shares of common stock to directors in connection with their service on the
Board or a committee.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 19, 2003 with respect to the beneficial
ownership of common stock by: (i) each shareholder known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the Company’s common stock; (ii) each director; (iii) each executive officer named in the Summary

Compensation Table; and (iv) all executive officers and directors as a group.

Name of Beneficial

Owner(1)(2) No. of shares Percentage
Marshall T. Leeds ...ccccoovvvviveniiereneiceeeacnereneeneens 16,722,765(3) 51.7%
Richard Parker ......cccevvivncrivinc e 4,722,765(4) 14.6%
Harry S. Green (5) oo, 117,500 0.4%
Steven C. Jacobs (6)......coeevervriiiririnreiirieecrinnens 45,000 0.1%
Sanford B. Cohen (7) ..ccvovevieviiiiieieerieeerereeerseveinens ' 20,000 0.1%
The Equity Group, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (8) 1,600,000 6.9%
All officers and directors

as @ Zroup (8 Persomns) ....c.veeereerrererereevnvisveerisreennes 22,259,868(9) 68.9%

(1) Unless otherwise noted, the address of each person or entity listed is Summit Brokerage Services, Inc., 25 Fifth
Avenue, Indialantic, Florida 32903.

(2) Based on 23,140,064 shares actually outstanding, and additional shares deemed to be outstanding as to a
particular person in accordance with the following applicable rules of the SEC. Beneficial ownership is
determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with
respect to securities. Shares of common stock subject to options, warrants or convertible securities that are
exercisable within 60 days of the date of March 19, 2003, are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage
of the person holding such options, warrants or convertible securities but are not deemed outstanding for
computing the percentage of any other person. Except as indicated by footnote and subject to community
property laws where applicable, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with
respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them.

(3) Includes: (a) 6,400,000 shares of common stock; (b) 5,600,000 shares issuable pursuant to options that are
exercisable within the next 60 days; and (c) 4,722,765 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Mr.
Parker but for which Mr. Leeds has sole voting power pursuant to a Shareholders’ Voting Agreement and
Irrevocable Proxy (“Voting Agreement”) granted to him by Mr. Parker and his spouse in connection with the
closing of the Leeds Transaction, which shares are represented as follows: (i) 3,313,595 outstanding shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Parker; and (ii) 1,409,170 shares issuable pursuant to stock options which are
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exercisable within the next 60 days (the “Voting Trust Shares”). Excludes 200,000 shares issuable pursuant to
stock options held by Mr. Parker which are not exercisable within the next 60 days, and which shares are also
subject to the Voting Agreement.

(4) Includes (i) 2,743,920 shares of common stock; (ii) 497,675 shares owed jointly with his spouse; (iii) 27,000
shares owned by his spouse; (iv) 1,249,170 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next
60 days; (iv) 45,000 shares he and/or his spouse control as trustees of two foundations and a trust; and (v)
160,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options held by his spouse which are exercisable within the next 60
days.

(5) Includes 117,500 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

(6) Includes 45,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days. Excludes 40,000
common stock purchase warrants to which Mr. Jacobs is entitled.

(7) Includes 20,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

(8) Address: 800 Third Avenue, 36" Floor, New York, NY 10022. The co-trustees of the Equity Group, Inc. Profit
Sharing Plan & Trust are Robert Goldstein and Loren Mortman, either of whom has voting authority over the
Trust’s investments. Also, Ms. Mortman and her spouse jointly own 200,000 shares of common stock.

(9) Includes 7,739,508 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

Change of Control

- OnMay 22, 2002, Marshall T. Leeds, our current Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and principal
shareholder, closed on the acquisition of a controlling interest in the Company pursuant to a privately negotiated
transaction (the “Leeds Transaction™). Mr. Leeds acquired 5,000,000 shares of our common stock for a total
purchase price of $500,000, or $.10 per share. Upon the closing, Mr. Leeds assumed the officer positions he now
holds and Richard Parker, the Company’s then Chairman and CEO became President, Chief Operating Officer and
Vice Chairman. Two of the then existing board members, Mr. Parker and Harry Green, remained on the board of
directors, while Mr. Leeds, Steven C. Jacobs and Sanford B. Cohen were appointed to the board. The new officers
and reconstituted board were confirmed by our shareholders at our annual shareholders’ meeting held in August
2002. The closing of the Leeds Transaction included the execution and delivery of a Shareholders’ Voting
Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy (the “Voting Agreement”) whereby Richard Parker, the current President and
Chief Operating Officer, and his spouse granted to Mr. Leeds voting control with respect to their shares of
outstanding common stock of the Company, owned individually and jointly, in addition to voting control over
certain of Mr. Parker’s shares issuable upon exercise of stock options by him. '

Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
A, Exhibits

Set forth below is a list of the exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

Number Name

31 » Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)

311 Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)

3.1.2 ‘ Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatlon (8)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws (2)

10.1 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (3)

10.1.2 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended (9)

10.2 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker (4)

10.3 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Mark F. Caulfield (4)

10.4 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker (5)

10.5 Employment Agreement between the Company and Mark F. Caulfield (5)

10.6 - Secured Demand Note Collateral Agreement between the Company and Summit Group of
Companies, Inc. (6) - 8

10.7 Amendment to Secured Demand Note Collateral Agreement (6)

10.8 Employment Agreement between the Company and Ronald Caprilla (7)

10.9 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds,
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dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.10 Employment Agreement between the Company and Marshall T. Leeds dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.11 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Marshall T: Leeds dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.12 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.13 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.14 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated May 22, 2002 (10)

10.15 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Marshall T. Leeds
dated May 22, 2002 (10)

10.16 Shareholders’ Voting Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy by and among the Company, Marshall T.
Leeds, Richard Parker and Joan Parker, dated May 22, 2002. (10)

10.17 Commercial Lease between the Company and First America Living Trust, dated May 22, 2002
(10)

10.18 Form of Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and certain investors (11)

16.1 Letter from Hoyman, Dobson & Company (11)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company (11)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 *

99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

99.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

* Filed herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Form. 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001, filed August 20, 2001
file no. 000-29337.

(2) Exhibit 3.2 filed with the Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001 was filed prematurely and
subsequently not adopted by the Board of Directors. As a result, the Amended and Restated Bylaws dated July
21, 2000 remain in effect and were re-filed with, and are incorporated by reference to, the Company’s Quarterly
Report for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 201, on Form 10-QSB, file no. 000-29337.

(3} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed July 31, 2000, file no. OOO-
29337.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Informatlon Statement on Schedule 14C, filed September 26, 2000,
file no. 000-29337.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed
August 14, 2000 and amended August 15, 2000, file no. 000-29337.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001, filed
May 21, 2001, file no. 000-29337.

@) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 filed April
15, 2002, file no. 000-29337.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002, ﬁled May
24, 2002, file no. 000-29337.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement filed August 12, 2002, file no. 000-29337.

(10)Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002, filed August
19, 2002, file no. 000-29337.

(11)Incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002,
filed May 14, 2003, file no. 000-29337.

B. Reports on Form 8-K

On March 22, 2002, the Company ﬁled a Current Report on Form 8-K to annex a press release announcing
the stock purchase agreement between the Company, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds.

20




On June 6, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K to report the closing of the stock purchase
agreement between it, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds and the acquisition of a controlling interest in the
Company by Mr. Leeds. - ’ :

" Item 14. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer evaluated the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this amended report. Based
upon this evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that material information required to
be disclosed is included in the reports that it files with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

During the fourth fiscal quarter of the period covered by this report, there were no changes in our internal
controls over financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

[Signature Page Follows]
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Summit Brokerage
Services, Inc. has duly caused this amendment to the annual report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized. .

SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC.

/s/ Marshall T. Leeds

Marshall T. Leeds

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Date: February 6, 2004

/s/ Steven C. Jacobs

Steven C. Jacobs

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

Date: February 6, 2004
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Indialantic, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of Summit Brokerage
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of loss,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 that you
are filing pursuant to Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The information contained in Schedule I is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplemental information required by Rule
17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
February 17, 2003
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31,2002

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposit held at clearing broker
Deposit held at clearing broker — related party
Commissions receivable
Other receivables
Securities owned, at fair value
Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued commission expense
Note payable — related party
Total liabilities

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, 12% cumulative convertible; par value $0.0001
per share; authorized 150,000 shares; 125,000 issued and
outstanding (liquidation preference of $125,000)

Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; authorized
50,000,000 shares; 20,200,064 issued and 20,192,148
outstanding

Additional paid-in capital
Unearned stock compensation
Treasury stock, at cost
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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§ 1,607,674
25,045
45,459

346,920
109,646
3,300
77,643
116,088

2331775

$ 210,091
310,640
40,200

560,931
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Loss
For The Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001

Revenues

Commissions $ 6,065,976 $ 6,899,311

Interest and dividends 76,202 107,811

Other 12,676 40,465

6,154,854 7,047,587

Expenses

Commissions 5,275,867 5,863,693

Employee compensation and benefits 917,062 900,977

Occupancy and equipment 188,253 169,985

Communications 116,445 129,724

Professional expenses 785,486 298,669

Other operating expenses 490,751 232,287

7,773,864 7,595,335
' Net loss before income taxes (1,619,010) (547,748)

Provision for income taxes - -
Net loss $ (1,619,010) $ (547,748)
Weighted average common shares and

common share equivalents outstanding 10,264,778 4,693,970
Basic and diluted loss per share $ *(0.16) $  (0.12)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For The Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities :
‘Net loss ' $ (1,619,010) $ (547,748)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities

Provision for doubtful advances receivable 4,721 -
Depreciation 51,338 56,640
Stock-based compensation and consulting 285,224 201,390
Changes in:
Deposit held at clearing broker 17 79
Deposit held at clearing broker — related party 6,051 -
Commission receivable ' 120,598 15,418
Other receivables . 92,016 (136,167)
Prepaid expenses (14,205) (16,658)
Due from related party, net - (2,861)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 35,783 83,122
Accrued commissions expense (153,244) - 83,250
Net cash used in operating activities ' (1,190,711) (263,535)
Cash flows from investing activities o
Purchase of property and equipment (11,002) (96,380)
Net cash used in investing activities (11,002) (96,380)
Cash flows from financing activities
(Payment) proceeds on note payable ‘ (50,000) 50,000
Issuance of preferred stock - 125,000
Dividends paid — preferred stock (5,000) -
Purchase of treasury stock - (7,800)
Issuance of treasury stock 12,520 21,419
Issuance of common stock 2,808,649 -
Payments on capital lease obligation : - (11,636)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,766,169 176,983
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,564,456 (182,932)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ' 43,218 226,150
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year § 1,607,674 ) 43,218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 3 1, 2002 and 2001

NOTE 1- NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUSINESS - Summit Brokerage Services Inc. (the “Company”) is a National Association of Securities
Dealers (NASD) member firm. The Company is an independent broker-dealer offering financial services
to clients across the country through its 50 independent broker-dealer branch offices.

CONSOLIDATION POLICY - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company’s primary subsidiaries include Summit Holding Group,
Inc. (a holding company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries Summit Financial Group, Inc. (a registered
investment advisor) and SBS Insurance Agency Of Florida, Inc. (an insurance business). Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

DEPOSIT HELD AT CLEARING BROKERS - The Company has an interest-bearing reserve deposit with
certain clearing brokers. These clearing brokers require deposits of all introducing brokers for whom they
transact business. One of the Company’s deposits is from a related party of the Company (see Note 4).

COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE — Based upon past experience and a review of the individual accounts,
management believes the commissions receivable as of December 31, 2002 are fully collectible;
accordingly, no allowance has been recorded.

SECURITIES OWNED, AT FAIR VALUE - Securities owned are valued at estimated fair value as
determined by management. The resulting differences between cost and estimated fair value are included
in the consolidated statements of loss.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation, for financial
reporting purposes, is primarily based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets, generally 3 to 7 years.

TREASURY STOCK - Treasury stock is reflected at cost.

COMMISSION REVENUE AND EXPENSES - Commission revenues and the corresponding commission
expense are recorded on a trade-date basis. The Company receives commissions on securities transactions
sold by registered representatives of the branch offices. The Company receives the gross amount of
commissions due from the transactions and remits a percentage of that amount to the registered
representatives based on a formal commission payout schedule maintained with each representative.

INCOME TAXES - Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist primarily of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related to net operating losses.
The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences,
which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred
tax may also be recognized for operating losses and tax credits that are available to offset future taxable
income.
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NOTE 1- NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

STOCK OPTIONS - The Company accounts for its options issued to employees in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. If options are
granted to employees for services and other consideration with an exercise price below the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of the grant, the difference between the fair market value and the
exercise price is charged to either stock-based compensation expense (where the options are issued for
services previously performed) or unearned stock compensation (where the options are issued for services
to be performed in the future). Stock based compensation expense and any amortization of unearned stock
compensation -related to employees is included in employee compensation and benefits in the
accompanying statements of loss.

The Company accounts for its options issued to non-employees in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123”). FAS 123
requires that options granted for services are to be recorded at fair market value at the date of grant,
regardless of the exercise price of the options. The Company determines fair market value by using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair market value is charged to stock-based compensation (where
the options are issued for services previously performed) or unearned stock compensation (where the
options are issued for services to be performed in the future). Stock based compensation and any
amortization of unearned stock compensation related to non-employees is included in professional
expenses in the accompanying statements of loss.

Unearned stock compensation is recorded for options issued to either employees or non-employees for
services to be rendered in the future. The Company amortizes any amounts recorded as unearned stock
compensation on a pro-rata basis over the period that the option’s are eamed, which generally is the
vesting period. Many of the Company’s registered representatives are independent, and are therefore
considered non-employees by the Company for purposes of accounting for stock option activity.

FAS 123 and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” require the Company to provide pro forma information
regarding net income (loss) as if compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans had been
determined in accordance with the fair value based method prescribed in FAS 123. To provide the required

- pro forma information, the Company estimates the fair value of each stock option at the grant date by using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148 also
provides for alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The Company has elected to continue to account for
stock-based employee compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25.

LOSS PER SHARE - Basic loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 have been
computed by dividing net loss less preferred dividends of $15,000 and $8,300, respectively, by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted loss per share for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 are the same as basic, as the dilutive calculation would have an anti-dilutive
effect because of the net loss. The weighted average number of potentially dilutive securities (options,
warrants, convertible preferred stock) that were excluded from the fully diluted calculation for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, totaled 8,221,508 and 1,402,393, respectively. -

ESTIMATES - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECLASSIFICATIONS - Certain amounts from the prlor year have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.
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NOTE 2- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Computer systems and software $ 126,489
Equipment and furniture 70,040
Leasehold improvements - 151,743
Total 348,272

Less: accumulated depreciation (232,184)
Total property and equipment $ 116,088

Depreciation expense was $51,338 and $56,640 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Accounts payable $ 198,479
Accrued wages and other 11,612
8210091

NOTE 4- NOTE PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

On March 31, 2000, the Company entered into a demand note collateral agreement with a corporation
100% owned by a shareholder and officer of the Company. The collateral for the note was held as a
clearing deposit with one of the Company’s clearing firms. The note became due on April 30, 2002 and
accrues interest at 12.0% per annum. As of November 1, 2002, the Company no longer was allowed to use
the subordinated agreement for net capital purposes. As of December 31, 2002, the outstanding balance is
$40,200 and is due on demand.

Dﬁring the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company paid off a $50,000 note payable to an unrelated
third party.

Cash paid for interest was $22,593 and $22,396 for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 5- COMMON STOCK

On July 16, 1997, the Company established an unwritten and informal restricted stock bonus plan as an
incentive for employees and certain consultants to remain in the employment or service of the Company.
The shares granted under the plan were in the form of restricted stock and vested over a period ranging up
to two years after the date of grant of the award. Since the stock issued was subject to continuous
employment or service from the date of the grant award, unearned compensation was recorded at the fair
market value at the date awarded as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. This informal plan was ended in
2000.

On May 22, 2002, Marshall T. Leeds, in a privately negotiated transaction, purchased an aggregate of
5,000,000 shares of our common stock for a total purchase price of $500,000, or $0.10 per share.
Mr. Leeds became our largest shareholder, as well as our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors. Richard Parker, the Company's former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, became
President, Chief Operating Officer and Vice Chairman. Two of our Board members, Mr. Parker and Harry
.Green, remained on the Board, and Mr. Leeds and two of his designees comprised a new five-member
Board. Mr. Parker has also granted Mr. Leeds voting control of 3,354,927 of his beneficially owned shares
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NOTE §- COMMON STOCK (Continued)

and up to 500,000 shares potentially issuable under options held by Mr. Parker. Mr. Leeds has voting
control until the earlier of (a) May 22, 2007, (b) the date Mr. Leeds is no longer an executive officer or
director of the Company, or (c¢) the occurrence of certain change of control events, Mr. Leeds became a
consultant to the Company in March 2002, and an employee in May, 2002.

In connection with this transaction, on March 15, 2002 and March 28, 2002, Mr. Parker borrowed a total of
$250,000 from Marshall T. Leeds for use by Mr. Parker to purchase a total of 2,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock. On May 17, 2002, Mr. Parker borrowed an additional $100,000 from
Mr. Leeds to purchase an additional 1,000,000 shares of common stock. The total loans of $350,000 were
secured by a pledge to Mr. Leeds from Mr. Parker of the 3,500,000 shares he purchased, plus 2,500,000
other shares of common stock previously owned by Mr. Parker. The loans were drawn from the $500,000
amount contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement paid by Mr, Leeds to purchase 5,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock. The loans provided the Company with capital that was needed immediately
in order for it to fund operations and certain of its business obligations. At the closing of the stock
purchase discussed in the preceding paragraph, Mr. Leeds purchased the 3,500,000 shares acquired by
Mr. Parker from the Company with the $350,000 of loan proceeds, in exchange for the cancellation of
Mr. Parker’s indebtedness to Mr. Leeds for the loans. Mr. Leeds also purchased the remaining 1,500,000
shares for an additional cash payment of $150,000, bringing his total stock purchased to 5,000,000 shares
for a total price of $500,000.

Oﬁ August 20, 2002, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of
authorized common shares from 20,000,000 to 50,000,000.

On October 9, 2002, 100,000 shares of common stock was issued to outside consultants for services
performed for the Company. . The Company . recorded $66,000 stock-based compensation expense in
professional expenses in the statement of loss as the estimated fair value of the stock at the date of issuance.

On October 14, 2002, the Company approved the Common Stock Private Offering (the “Offering”), which
consists of a private placement of up to 20,000,000 shares of its common stock to accredited investors at a
purchase price of'$.25 per share. The Company also authorized the issuance of up to 2,000,000 of common
stock purchase warrants to selling broker-dealers in the Offering. These warrants have an exercise price
equal to 120% of the per share price of the common stock sold in the Offering and vest immediately upon
issuance. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company issued 8,200,000 shares of common
stock related to the Offering for $2,050,000. In addition, as of December 31, 2002, the Company issued
530,000 warrants to selling broker-dealers at an exercise price of $.30. These warrants were fair valued in
accordance with FAS 123 at approximately $390,000. The entire $390,000 is considered offering costs and
was charged against additional paid-in capital, which resulted in no net effect to equity. Additionally, other
Offering costs of approximately $270,000 were charged against paid-in capital.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer exercised an option for
1,400,000 shares of common stock at $.25 per share.

At various other periods during 2002, common stock was issued for cash to various individuals exclusive of
the Offering. During the year ended December 31, 2002, 5,000,000 shares of common stock were issued
for $.10 a share and in July 2002, the Company sold 200,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for net
proceeds of approximately $180,000 in a private placement of Series B Preferred Stock. The Series B
Preferred Stock private placement was subsequently terminated without further sales and the investor’s
shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted into 800,000 shares of common stock of the Company at
an effective conversion rate of $0.25 per share.
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NOTE 6 - PREFERRED STOCK

On March 27, 2002, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to reduce the preferred stock, par
value $.0001 per share, from 5,000,000 authorized shares to 150,000. During the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company issued 125,000 shares of 12% cumulative convertible preferred stock for $125,000.
The number of shares of common stock which may be issued in respect of the shares of preferred stock
shall be determined by dividing (i) a numerator equal to the number of shares of Series A 12% Convertible
Preferred Stock being converted multiplied by 115% of the subscription price, by (ii) a denominator
representing the per share price that is the lower of the closing price and the average closing sale price for
the 20 trading days immediately preceding the Series A conversion date; provided, however, in no event
shall the denominator be less than the subscription price. The estimated number of shares that would have
been issued if the convertible preferred stock were converted as of December 31, 2002 is 143,750. All such
preferred stock is non-voting stock. The holders of Series A 12% Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive, out of funds legally available for that purpose, cash dividends at the rate of $0.12 per
annum, subject to voluntary conversion. Such dividends shall accrue and be cumulative from the issue
date. Dividends shall be payable in arrears, when and as declared by the Board of Directors, on March 31,
June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year; provided, however, the first dividend payment date
shall not occur before the last calendar day of the first full fiscal quarter following the issue date. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, $5,000 in cash dividends was paid. As of December 31, 2002,
undeclared dividends in arrears approximated $18,300. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company's affairs for a price per share which is less than the subscription price set forth
herein, helders of the preferred shares will be entitled to a liquidation preference of $1.00 per preferred
share, plus the dividends set forth above, prior to any distribution to the holders of common stock in full
and complete liquidation of the interest of the holders of preferred shares. In the event that the Company
does not have sufficient funds to pay the full liquidation preference payable to the holders of preferred
shares, and any other shares issued on a parity with the preferred shares ("Parity Shares"), the existing
funds will be allocated among the holders of all such preferred shares and Parity Shares pro rata in
proportion to the full amounts to which they would respectively be entitled. At any time after August 1,
2002, the Company may, unless otherwise prevented by law, redeem from the holder thereof, the holder's
preferred shares at the subscription price ($1.00 per share), together with any accrued but unpaid dividends
thereon to and including the date of redemption, in whole or, from time to time, in part. Any partial
redemption shall be allocated among the holders of preferred shares pro rata or by lot, as determined by the
Company. :

NOTE 7- TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock is reflected at cost, and consists of 7,916 and 8,984 shares of common stock at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 8 - STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

In March 2002, the Company issued to the Company’s current President, COO and Vice Chairman 900,000
options to purchase the Company’s common stock in connection with his employment contract with the
Company. Of this total, 500,000 options have an exercise price of $0.10 per share and vested upon
issuance and 400,000 options have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and vest over a two-year period.
All options expire on December 31, 2007. Stock-based compensation of approximately $50,000 was
recorded as a result of issuing these options and is included in employee compensation and benefits in the
statements of loss. :

In March 2002, the Company issued to the Company’s current CEO and Chairman of the Board of
Directors, 7,000,000 options to purchase the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per
share. These options vested upon issuance and expire on December 31, 2007. These options were issued
in connection with his employment contract with the Company. No compensation expense was recorded,
as the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the grant date was equal to or less than the exercise
price.
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NOTE 8 - STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (Continued)

During 2002, the Company issued 1,092,215 options to non-employees with a fair market value of $345,755, all of
which was recorded as unearned stock based compensation.  For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
amortization of unearned stock based compensation expense related to non-employees was $61,239 and $15,468,
respectively. During 2002 and 2001, the Company issued 8,945,405 and 504,141 options to employees which were
recorded- at their intrinsic value of $104,250 and $0, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, amortization of unearned stock based compensation expense related to employees was $6,342 and $185,922,
respectively. o ‘ : '

Stock option activity during 2002 and 2001, was as follows:

Weighted-

Number of average

Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 1,162,723 § -2.50
Granted 504,141 $ .77
Forfeited (31,648) $ 250
QOutstanding at December 31, 2001 1,635,216 $ 197
. Granted . _ 10,037,620 $ 032
Exercised ' . (1,400,000) $ .23
. Forfeited o ' - (400,677) $ 130
Outstariding at December 31, 2002 9,872,159 $ 0.56
Shares exercisable at December 31, 2002 , ‘ 8,094,922 $ 0.55

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2002 was $.10 to $2.50. The following table
summarizes information about options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted
Number of _ Contractual Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares ~ Life (in years) Exercise Price
- - $0.10 : 500,000 5.0 ‘ $0.10
$0.25 _ 5,769,905 5.1 $0.25
$0.50 l ' 1,755,290 93 $0.50
$0.75 594,215 9.6 $0.75
$1.00 262,690 8.9 $1.00
$2.50 R 990,059 1S5 $2.50

9,872,159 $0.57

Exercisable Options

Weighted

Number of Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Exercise Price
$0.10 - $0.25 6.269,905 $0.24
$0.50 - $1.00 : 868,298 $0.62
$2.50 956,719 $2.50
8,094,922 $ .55




NOTE 8- STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (Continued)

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had 530,000 warrants outstanding for the purchase of the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price of $.30 per share. These warrants expire in November 2007.

The Company accounts for its options and warrants according to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and follows the disclosure provisions of FAS 123. Accordingly, if
options or warrants are granted to employees for services and other consideration with an exercise price below the
fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant, the difference between the exercise price and the fair
market value is charged to operations and/or unearned stock compensation. The fair value of the options and
warrants granted during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, reported below, has been estimated at
the dates of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Valuation Model with the following assumptions:

2002 2001

Expected life (in years) 1.0 -10.0 10.0

Risk-free interest rate 5.0% - 5.0%
Volatility 211.0% 225%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%

The Black-Scholes Option Valuation Model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options and
warrants that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s
options and warrants have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the opinion of management, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its options.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting periods. The Company’s pro forma information is as. follows:

2002 2001
Net loss, as reported $ (1,619,010) $ (547,748)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under the .

- fair value-based method for all awards (2,299,413) (119,524)
Pro forma net loss $ (3,918423) $ (667,272)
Loss per share:

Basic and diluted - as reported $ (0.16) $ (0.12)
Basic and diluted - pro forma $ (0.38) $ (0.14)

The effects on pro forma disclosures of applying FAS 123 are not necessarily indicative of the effects on pro forma
disclosures of future years.




NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases office space under a noncancelable operating lease with an entity whose major
shareholder is also an officer and shareholder of the Company. Under the terms of the lease, the Company
leases office space for its headquarters at a rate of approxxmately 38,800 per month. The lease expires in
May 2004.

Total rent expense, including month-to-month leases, for the years ending December 31, 2002 and 2001»
was $153,827 and §137,643, respectively.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

'The Company is a party to legal proceedings relating to various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal
course of business. Management believes that the range of potential net loss resulting from these
proceedings will not be material to the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

In conjunction with the CEO’s May 22, 2002 employment agreement, the CEO is entitled to a fee equal to
3% of the first twelve months’ production generated by brokers recruited by him who remain with the
Company for at least twelve months. The CEO and the Company have agreed to forego payment for any
production generated by brokers recruited by the CEO through December 31, 2002. Accordingly, no
liability has been recorded at December 31, 2002 in the statement of financial condition.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

Due to the net operating losses and valuation allowance, there was no prov151on for both federal or state
taxes for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. -

Deferred tax assets and their approximate tax effect totaled $758,000 and $482,000 for the years ended

December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The significant components of the deferred tax assets were

comprised of net operating losses of $707,000 and $439,000 and amortization of unearned stock
~ compensation of $48,000 and $40,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
_ tax assets will not be realized. The Company has established a valuation allowance for the entire deferred
tax asset due to recurring losses since the Company’s inception.

~The valuation allowance mcreased $276,000 and $60,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3,280,000 for federal and state
income tax purposes, which are available to offset future taxable income. These loss carryforwards explre
in various years through 2017.

B
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NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the statutory federal income tax rate due to the following: J

December 31,

2002 2001
" Taxat statutory rate ‘ 34% C34%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Effect of reducing federal corporate tax rate to the lowest tax

bracket due to recurring losses incurred by the Company (19%) (19%)

Effect of state income tax 5% 5%

Effect on non-deductibility of stock-based compensation (3%) (10%)

Effect of valuation allowance - ‘ (17%) (10%)

Effective tax rate . .

Under U.S. federal tax laws, certain changes in ownership of a company may cause severe limitations on
future utilization of these loss carryforwards.

NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND -
‘ FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ‘

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of temporary cash investments. The Company places its temporary cash investments with financial
institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts that approximate fair value because of the short maturity of
these instruments.

NOTE 12 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

-The Company paid rent of approximately $133,000 and $109,200 during 2002 and 2001, respectively, to a
related company owned by an individual who is an officer and shareholder of the Company. The related
company owns one of the buildings the Company is leasing. ’

The Company has a $40,200 note payable due on demand with a related company owned by an individual
who is an officer and shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company reimbursed an entity wholly-owned by an officer
and shareholder of the Company approximately $97,000 for costs related to the Company’s private
placement of its common stock.

NOTE 13 - NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

The Company is a “Fully Disclosed Broker-Dealer”. The Company does not carry customer accounts and
does not accept customer funds or securities. Instead, it has entered into a “clearing agreement” with a
clearing broker and has fully disclosed all of its customer accounts to this broker.

The Company is subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission Uniform Net Capital Rule (SEC Rule
15¢ 3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital,

The fully phased-in net capital requirement for “fully disclosed” brokers-dealers that receive but do not

hold customer or other securities, is $50,000. The rule also requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness
to net capital shall not exceed 15 to 1.

F-14




NOTE 13 - NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (Continued)

At December 31, 2002, the Company had net capital of $1,377,156 and the Company’s aggregate
indebtedness to net capital ratio was 0.4 to 1.

NOTE 14 - OTHER

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which contemplates continuation of the Company as a
going concern. As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has incurred losses of
approximately $1,619,000 and $548,000 and negative cash flows from operations of approximately
$1,191,000 and $264,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively; however,
management believes that it has sufficient resources to continue as a going concern through December 31,
2003. Managcment plans to continue to raise capital through equity offerings and to make strateglc
acquisitions to increase its volume.

NOTE 15 - OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK R ST,
Included in the Company’s clearing agreement with its clearing broker is an indemnification clause. This
clause relates to instances where the Company’s customers fail to settle security transactions. In the event
this occurs, the Company has indemnified the clearing broker fo the extent of the net loss on the unsettled
trade. At December 31, 2002, management of the Company had not been notified by the clearing broker,
nor were they otherwise aware, of any potential losses relating to this indemnification.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 2, 2003, the Company acquired, in an asset purchase agreement, the Boca Raton Branch of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (the “Branch”). The Branch was an affiliated retail branch
office of Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (“Wachovia™), with approximately 30 registered
representatives conducting retail brokerage business. The purchase price was approximately $1,800,000,
payable to Wachovia over four years. The purchase price contemplated the signing of an employment
agreement with each of the registered representatives. Management believes that the acquisition will
expand its market presence and overall customer base. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations”, the results of operations of the Branch will be included in the
Company’s financial statements as of the date of acquisition.

Based upon management’s preliminary estimates, the purchase price, including estimated transaction costs,
will be allocated as follows: Customer list - $1,142,000; Goodwill - $708,000; Equipment - $6,000.
Customer list will be amortized over its estimated beneficial life of six years.




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Schedule I
Computation of Net Capital Under Rule 15¢3-1 of the

Securities and Exchange Commission

As of December 31, 2002

Net Capital ]
Total consolidated stockholders' equity . $ 1,770,844

Deductions and/or charges:
Non-allowable assets:

" Commissions receivable - o o ' ‘ $ 82,997
‘Other receivables - o : » © 109,646
Prepaid expenses 77,643
Property and equipment, net. - ‘ 116,088
' : : ‘ 386,374
Haircuts on securities: _ - , 4
15% haircut on marketable equity securities ' 7,314
Net capital | | ' $ 1,377,156

Agpgregate Indebtedness’

Items included in consolidated statement of
financial condition

Accrued payable and accrued expenses , - $ 210,091
Accrued commissions . . o . S 310,640
Note payable 40,200
Total aggregate indebtedness P S : ' $ - 560,931
Computation of Basic Net Capital Requirement
Minimum net capital required L , , $ 50,000
Excess net éap_ital at-1,500 percent -, $ 1,339,761
Excess net capital at 1,000 percent ~ $ 1,321,063
Ratio: Apggregate indebtedness to net capital 04to1l

Reconciliation with Company's Computation (Included
in Part II of the Amended Form X-17A-5 as of December 31, 2002)

A reconciliation is not considered necessary pursuant to Rule 17a-5(d)(4), as there are no material differences
between the Company's computation of net capital under Rule 15¢3-1 and the computation of net capital
included on this schedule.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE REQUIRED
BY SEC RULE 17a-5 FOR A BROKER-DEALER CLAIMING AN
EXEMPTION FROM SEC RULE 15c3-3

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Indialantic, Florida

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements and supplemental schedule of Summit
Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries, for the year ended December 31, 2002, we considered its internal control,
including control activities for safeguarding securities, in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control.

Also, as required by Rule 17a-5(g)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), we have made a study
of the practices and procedures followed by the Company, including tests of such practices and procedures that we
considered relevant to the objectives stated in Rule 17a-5(g) in making the periodic computations of aggregate
indebtedness (or aggregate debits) and net capital under Rule 17a-3(a)(11) and for determining compliance with the
exemptive provisions of Rule 15¢3-3. Because the Company does not carry securities accounts for customers or
perform custodial functions relating to customer securities, we did not review the practices and procedures followed
by the Company in any of the following:

1. Making quarterly securities examinations, counts, verifications, and comparisons
2. Recordation of differences required by Rule 17a-13
3. Complying with the requirements for prompt payment for securities under Section 8 of Federal Reserve

Regulation T of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control and the practices
and procedures referred to in the preceding paragraph. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by
management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of controls and of the practices and
procedures referred to in the preceding paragraph and to assess whether those practices and procedures can be
expected to achieve the SEC's above-mentioned objectives. Two of the objectives of internal control and the
practices and procedures are to provide management with reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets for
which the Company has responsibility are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Rule 17a-5(g) lists
additional objectives of the practices and procedures listed in the preceding paragraph.
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Because of inherent limitations in internal control or the practices and procedures referred to above, error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of them to future periods is subject to the risk that
they may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of their design and operation
may deteriorate.

Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal control that might be
material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A -
material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of the specific internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. However, we noted no matters involving internal control, including
control activities for safeguarding securities, that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

We understand that practices and procedures that accomplish the objectives referred to in the second paragraph of
this report are considered by the SEC to be adequate for its purposes, in accordance with the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and related regulations, and that practices and procedures that do not accomplish such objectives in all
material respects indicate a material inadequacy for such purposes. Based on this understanding and on our study,
we believe that the Company's practices and procedures were adequate at December 31, 2002, to meet the SEC's
objectives.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, the SEC, the
National Association of Securities Dealers, and other regulatory agencies that rely on Rule 17a-5(g) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in their regulation of registered brokers and dealers, and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/s/ Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
February 17, 2003
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Introductory Comment

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “Summit” and “the
Company” refer to Summit Brokerage Services, Inc., a Florida corporation, and, unless the context indicates
otherwise, includes our subsidiaries.

Forward Looking Statements

This contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. When used in this Annual
Report, the words “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project” or “intend” and similar
expressions identify forward-looking statements regarding events, conditions and financial trends in connection with
our future plan of operations, business strategy, operating results and financial position. Discussions containing
such forward-looking statements may be found in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.” Current shareholders and prospective investors are cautioned that any forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance. Such forward-looking statements by their nature involve
substantiai risks and uncertainties, certain of which are beyond our control, and actual results for future periods
could differ materially from those discussed in this Annual Report, depending on a variety of important factors,
among which are the success or failure of our management’s efforts to implement our business strategy; the level of
acquisition opportunities available to us and our ability to price and negotiate such transactions on a favorable basis,
our ability to properly manage growth and successfully integrate acquired companies and operations, our ability to
compete with major established companies, our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, and other risks
which may be described from time to time in future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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PART1
Item 1. Description of Business.

General Overview and History

Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. (referred to herein alternately as “Summit,” “Company,” “we,” “our” or
“us”) is an independent broker dealer licensed in 46 states and offer financial services to clients across the country.
We are a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD), as well as the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC). As of the date of this Annual Report, we currently have over 100 Registered
Representatives working as independent contractors or employees out of our 59 locations nationwide, through which
we provide our services.

We provide the following financial services to our clients through our Registered Representatives:

- Full service and discount stock and bond brokerage services;

~  Load and no-load mutual fund executions;

- Asset allocation services for mutual funds, stocks and bonds;

- Life, health and disability insurance coverage;

- Money market funds;

~ Clearing services for our branch offices through our third-party clearing companies;
- Registered investment advisor services; and

— . Financial planning services.

Our branch offices are located throughout the United States, While we service retail customers for the
most part, we also service a number of corporate and institutional clients. We are essentially a “financial planning”
firm, whereby a Registered Representative, whom we sometimes refer to as “Planners,” discusses a clients’ financial
needs and objectives in detail, develops a plan and implements the plan with the clients’ approval.

We have a history of significant operating losses, as outlined in “Item 6. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” We recently completed a private placement in which
we raised approximately $3 million from the sale of our common stock, and we believe that our operations and
current capital resources will be sufficient to fund our working capital needs through fiscal year 2003. However, we
cannot assure you that we will be able to limit our future negative cash flow or that we will be able to obtain any
outside financing that we may require in the future. Unless we are able to increase our revenues, add new branch
offices and Registered Representatives, and/or significantly reduce our operating costs, we may need to fund any
future negative cash flows from additional debt or equity financing.. In addition, we anticipate that our strategy of
growth through acquisitions will necessitate additional debt and/or equity financing. Our failure to obtain sufficient
financing that we may need in the future could have a material adverse effect on our operations and our ability to
continue as a going concern.

Change of Control

On May 22, 2003, Marshall T. Leeds, our current Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and principal
shareholder, closed on the acquisition of a controlling interest in the Company pursuant to a privately negotiated
transaction (the “Leeds Transaction”). Mr. Leeds acquired 5,000,000 shares of our common stock for a total
purchase price of $500,000, or $.10 per share. Upon the closing, Mr. Leeds assumed the officer positions he now
holds and Richard Parker, the Company’s then Chairman and CEO became President, Chief Operating Officer and
Vice Chairman. Two of the then existing board members, Mr. Parker and Harry Green, remained on the board of
directors, while Mr. Leeds, Steven C. Jacobs and Sanford B. Cohen were appointed to the board. The new officers
and reconstituted board were confirmed by our shareholders at our annual shareholders™ meeting held in August
2002. The closing of the Leeds Transaction included the execution and delivery of a Shareholders’ Voting
Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy (the “Voting Agreement”) whereby Richard Parker, the current President and
Chief Operating Officer, and his spouse granted to Mr. Leeds voting control with respect to their shares of
outstanding common stock of the Company, owned individually and jointly, in addition to voting control over




certain of Mr. Parker’s shares issuable upon exercise of stock options by him. See Item 11 of this Report, “Security
Owmership of Certain Beneficial Owners.”

Organization

Summit, incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida in Septernber 1993, has three wholly-owned
subsidiaries: Summit Financial Group, Inc., which is a Registered Investment Advisor under the Investment
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended; SBS Insurance Agency of Florida, Inc., which is an insurance sales agency
operating in 34 states; and Summit Holding Group, Inc., which currently has no operations. SBS Insurance Agency
of California, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBS Insurance Agency of Florida, Inc., and currently has no
operations.

Our common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Electronic Bulletin Board under the symbol “SUBO”
and began trading in June 1998.

Our offices are located at 25 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, Florida, 32903; telephone: 321-724-2303, and
at 980 North Federal Highway, Suite 310, Boca Raton, Florida 33432; telephone 800-257-6082; web site:
www,summitbrokerage.com.

Industry Background

The financial services industry has been in existence for over 100 years. The industry evolved from three
separate areas: the banking industry, the brokerage industry and the insurance industry. Over the last 25 years, the
three industries have slowly merged together to form an industry now commonly referred to as “financial services.”
The industry offers financial planning services to a wide array of individuals and companies. With the introduction
of the Internet, a host of industry publications, and several financial television networks, the general public has
become increasingly versed with the financial instruments available and much more knowledgeable about
investments in general.

Over the last two decades, 401(k) plans have become the investment of choice for many investors.
Companies desiring to limit their ongoing liability have moved away from defined benefit and profit sharing plans,
electing to utilize the 401(k) to invest retirement funds for their employees. Many investors begin working with the
financial services industry through participation in their company’s 401(k) plan.

Products

Summit offers a broad range of products to the investing public through Registered Representatives
working as both independent contractors and employees out of our branch offices. These products include mutual
funds, annuities, individual stocks, bonds, insurance products and managed money accounts.

We earn income, which we record as “commission revenue,” as products are sold by our Registered
Representatives. We receive commission revenue from our product suppliers, such as mutual fund companies or
insurance companies. We then pay out a percentage of this amount, which we record as “commission expense,” to
the Registered Representative who sold the product, in accordance with the agreement each Registered
Representative enters into with us.

Our Registered Representatives offer “package products” to the investing public which include, among
other things, mutual funds, annuities and unit investment trusts. The term “package product” describes a package of
securities, usually common stocks, which are managed by an investment company. While many are licensed to sell
individual stocks and bonds, this has been a relatively small percentage of our business in the past. We believe that
the use of a package product provides:




More suitable products to the general public;
More efficient management of the funds;

. A reduction of risks from buying individual securities; and
An easier supervision.process for our compliance team.

The managed accounts are charged a fee which provides recurring revenue for Summit. While investors
are sometimes reluctant to buy individual securities and to pay what they may consider high commission fees, they
have invested heavily in mutual funds and annuities in recent years. These products are usually part of a group of
mutual funds sometimes referred to as a “family.” It is possible for the investor, through management of these
accounts, to move from fund to fund within the family, and take advantage of sectors of the economy which are
experiencing growth which may be greater than that of other sectors at that particular time. For example, an investor
may be in a growth and income fund and move to a technology fund based upon the advice of an investment adviser.
By managing the investor’s portfolio within the mutual fund family and advising as to when the move should be
made, the adviser continues to earn the fee from the amount of money under management rather than a one-time
commission, which may or may not materialize based upon whether or not the stock markets move up or down.

For example, if an investor has $200,000 under management, Summit may realize a management fee of
1.75%, or $3,500, on an annual basis. Even if the value of portfolio decreases to $150,000, Summit continues to
realize income from the management fee in the amount of $2,625, which is less than in the previous year. On the
positive side, if the portfolio grew to $250,000, Summit will realize an annual fee of $4,375. Currentty, Summit has
over $36 million under management. By offering our product mix, we believe that our Registered Representatives
will be viewed more as advisers than traditional stockbrokers. This helps by creating personal relatlonshlps with the
clients that provide a long and mutually beneficial working relationship.

Revenues, by product, for fiscal 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2002 2001

Mutual funds......coceivivivincen $2,031,102 33% - $3,171,414 45%
ANNUITES ..ot $1,477,165  24% $1,902,848 27%
EqQUItEs ovvoviv v $ 861,680 14% $ 211,428 3%
Registered Investment Advisory Fees . $ 369,291 6% $ 140,952 2%
INSUrance.....ooovvviveei e $1,169,422 19% $1,550,469 22%
Miscellaneous .......ccocceiiineicineirnincnnenns $ 246,194 4% $ 70,476 1%

Total...ccooo i $6.154.854 100% $7,047,587 100%

Business Strategy

Since 1995, we have implemented a strategy of affiliating independent financial planning offices across the
country with our company. These independent offices bear the full expense of the day-by-day operations of their
independently owned locations. We receive, on average, a 10% to 20% over-ride of the gross revenue prov1ded by
these locations. In addition, there are several other forms of income we derive from these offices.

We derive additional revenue from Registered Investment Advisory (RIA) fees in the form of fee-based
management of individual stocks and/or bond accounts and mutual fund accounts offered by our Registered
Representatives. Much of the management of these funds is out-sourced to outside managers for the day-by-day
management.

Another source of revenue comes from the wide array of insurance products we offer, including life
insurance, annuities, long-term care and disability insurance.



We also recently implemented a strategy of supplementing our growth through acquisitions of assets of
retail broker/dealer firms or branches that are complementary to our business. The Company believes that small to
mid-sized broker/dealer firms have entered a period of consolidation. The Company intends to pursue acquisition
opportunities as a means of expanding its market presence and overall customer base.

One of the positive aspects of the financial services industry is that virtually any person or company is a
potential client. In the early years of life, young families invest for college funding and begin to prepare for their
retirement. Middle age families focus more on retirement planning and capital accumulation to achieve other
financial goals. The seniors’ market focuses on preservation of capital and providing income through the retirement
years.

Seasonality and Cyclical Factors

Our revenues are affected only slightly by the traditional U.S. vacation seasons, such as July, August and
December. Our revenues may be more adversely affected by cyclical factors, such as financial market downturns,
problems or recessions in the U.S. or global economies. These downturns may cause investor concern, which has
historically resulted in fewer transactions and less investing through broker/dealers and financial planners such as
Summit, thereby reducing our revenues and potential profits. Such conditions would present risk in that we would
need to raise additional capital to offset related significant reductions in revenues.

Competition

We compete with numerous investment banking and brokerage firms, consulting firms and financial
service companies that are larger, have more financial resources, have longer operating histories and, in some cases,
offer more services to a client than we do. In addition, there is increasing competition from businesses such as
commercial banking and insurance companies and certain accounting firms that now offer financial services.
Businesses in the securities industry compete primarily in the following areas:

Quality and ability of professional personnel;
Experience and reputation of the firm;

Relative prices of services and products offered;
The scope of products and services; and

The efficiency of back office operations.

We have focused our efforts on positioning our company competitively by targeting our services to
individuals and middle-market companies and providing them with competitively priced products and services. Our
targeted markets are those we believe are not adequately served by, and not the primary focus of, the larger firms.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we employed 18 full-time people, consisting of 5 in management and 13 in
general staff positions. We also contract with over 100 licensed Registered Representatives, who are normally
engaged by us as independent contractors, although some are engaged as employees.

None of our employees are represented by a labor union or are subject to a collective bargaining agreement.
We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Regulation

The securities industry in the United States is subject to extensive regulation under various federal and state
laws and regulations. While the SEC administers most of the federal securities laws, much of the regulation of the
securities industry is subject to various self-regulatory organizations such as the NASD. The self-regulatory
organizations, among other things, promulgate regulations and provide oversight in the following areas:




Sales practices;

Trade practices among broker-dealers;

Capital requirements; '

Record keeping; and

o Conduct of employees and affiliates of member organizations.

The SEC and the self regulatory organizations also have the authority to conduct administrative
proceedings which can result in the censure, fine, suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer, its employees or
officers. Also, new legislation, changes in the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC or self regulatory
organizations, or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules often directly affect the
operation and profitability of broker-dealers. The stated purpose of much of the regulation of broker-dealers is the
protection of customers and the securities markets, rather than the protection of creditors and sharcholders of broker-
dealers. ‘

Subsequent Events

On January 2, 2003, the Company acquired, in an asset purchase agreement, the Boca Raton branch of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (the ‘Branch”). The Branch was an affiliated retail branch office of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (“Wachovia™), with approximately 22 registered representatives
conducting retail brokerage business. The purchase price was approximately $1,800,000, payable to Wachovia over
four years. The purchase price contemplated the signing of an employment agreement with each of the registered
representatives. Management believes that the acquisition will expand its market presence and overall customer
base.

In March 2003, the Company completed a private offering of its common stock which it commenced in
October 2002. In that offering, the Company raised approximately $3 million with the sale of approximately
12,000,000 shares of common stock. The investors in that private placement have certain piggy-back registration
rights and the Company is obligated to file with the SEC within the next 60.days (subject to extension or delay up to
180 days under certain circumstances), a registration statement registering the private investors’ common shares for
subsequent re-sale. However, the shares are subject to a lock-up that provides that one-half of the shares may be
sold commencing six months after the effective date of the registration statement and all common shares may be
sold commencing 12 months after the effective date of the registration statement.

Item 2. Description of Property

On May 22, 2002 the Company entered into a lease for approximately 5,000 square feet of office space for
approximately $8,800 a month. This lease expires in May 2004, The lessor is First America Living Trusts, Inc., an
entity wholly-owned by Richard Parker, our Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer.

The Company occupies approximately 10,900 square feet of office space in three locations within the same
building in Boca Raton, Florida, all of which space was previously occupied by Wachovia Financial Securities
Network (“WFSN™). Approximately 1,900 square feet of space occupied by the Company was subleased in January
2001 from WFSN, on a month-to-month basis, by Gold Coast Acquisitions, Inc. (“GCA”), an entity wholly-owned
by Marshall T. Leeds, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Company also occupies an
additional 3,000 square feet of office space adjoining the aforementioned space. The Company currently pays
directly to WESN such monthly lease payments of approximately $12,542. The Company is currently negotiating ’
with WEFSN to enter into a long term lease arrangement with respect to these two locations. In connection with the
acquisition of the Branch, the Company agreed to execute an assignment of lease with WFSN for approximately
6,000 square feet of space, which requires minimum monthly lease payments of $18,971 and terminates on January
31, 2005. Pending the execution of assignment, the Company has been making the aforementioned lease payments.




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time the Company is engaged in various legal and regulatory proceedings arising in the
normal course of business. Many aspects of the securities brokerage business involve substantial risks of liability.
In recent years, there has been an increasing incidence of litigation involving the securities brokerage industry,
including class action and other suits that generally seek substantial damages, including in some cases punitive
damages. The Company currently maintains errors and omissions insurance, the proceeds of which may help to
reduce the amount we may otherwise be required to pay with respect to certain types of claims. There can be no
assurance, however, that the Company will be able to obtain errors and omissions insurance in the future, or that if it
can be obtained, that the price for such insurance will be reasonable, or that even if such insurance is in force the
amount of any award will not exceed the maximum coverage provided by such insurance, in which case we will be
required to pay any uncovered portion. While it is not possible to.determine with certainty the outcome of these
matters, we are of the opinion the eventual resolution of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on
our financial position or operating results. Any such litigation brought in the future could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Yote of Security Holders
Not applicable.
PART 11
Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

Our common stock is traded in the Over-the-Counter market and is quoted on the Electronic Bulletin Board
under the symbol “SUBQO.” The following table represents the range of the high and the low last sale prices, as
reported by the NASDAQ Trading and Market Services, for each fiscal quarter for the last two fiscal years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001. These quotations represent prices between dealers, may not include retail mark-ups,
markdowns or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Fiscal Quarter Ended Low High
March 31, 2002 $.20 $1.75
June 30, 2002 $1.01 $2.75
September 30, 2002 _ $.55 $1.50
December 31, 2002 $.65 $1.80
March 31, 2001 $.25 $1.06
June 30, 2001 . $.44 $1.05
September 30, 2001 $.22 : $1.13
December 31, 2001 ‘ $.20 $.35

On March 19, 2003, the closing price of our common stock was $.87 and we had approximately 189
holders of record.

Dividends and Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock during the last two fiscal years and we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain
any future earnings for reinvestment in our business. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent on our financial condition, results of operations, capital
requirements and other relevant factors. During 2002, we paid a total of $ 5,000 in cash dividends on our Series A
preferred stock.




Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On October 9, 2002, 100,000 shares of Summit’s common stock was issued to two outside consultants for
services performed for us. The services provided were valued at $50,000. The services provided were valued at
$50,000. In connection with this transaction, we relied on the exemption provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The investors were provided information about Summit or had
access to such information and were afforded opportunities to ask questions of management regarding the
information provided or made available. The investors confirmed in writing to Summit that they were acquiring the
securities for investment purposes only. The securities are restricted and the certificates bear a legend accordingly.

During the fourth fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2002, we received $2,050,000 in cash proceeds from
the sale of 8,200,000 shares of common stock related to a private placement. In connection with the offer and sale
of such securities, we relied on the exemption provided under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of
Regulation D promulgated thereunder. The purchasers of the securities confirmed in writing to Summit that they
were accredited investors and that they were purchasing the securities for investment purposes only. The securities . :
are restricted and the certificates bear a legend accordingly. The securities are subject to certain lock-up prov151ons
and certain registration rights.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes share information about our equity compensation plans, including the
2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and non-plan equity compensation agreements as of December 31, 2002.

: . Number of Securities
Number of Securities to be Weighted-Average "Remaining Available For

Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Future Issuance Under
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, -~ Equity Compensation -
Plan Category ) Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Plans
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved By 9,418,121 $.57 o 1,781,487 (2)
Shareholders (1)............ ' '
Equity Compensation Plans
Not Approved by
Shareholders (3)............. 984,038 , $.76 0-

112 N 10,402,159 5.64 1,781,487 (2)

(1) Includes 2,218,513 shares subject to outstanding options under the 2000 Incentive Compensatlon Plan and 7,199,608
shares subject to non-plan option agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2002. ‘

(2) Represents shares available for award grants under the 2000 Incentive Compensatlon Plan as of December 31, 2002.

(3) Includes 454,038 shares subject to non-plan option agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2002,
and 530,000 shares issuable upon exercise of common stock purchase warrants earned by selling broker/dealers in
connection with our common stock private placement. In fiscal 2002, Summit authorized the issuance of up to 2,000,000
common stock purchase warrants to selling broker/dealers in the private placement, at an exercise price of $.30 per share
and vesting immediately upon issuance. Of that amount, 530,000 warrants were earned as of December 31, 2002.

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders — Options. The equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders consist of outstanding options for 454,038 shares of Summit’s common stock (as of
December 31, 2002) pursuant to option agreements dated May 16, 2000, the form of which for 254,732 shares is
attached to Summit’s definitive Proxy Statement as Exhibit A dated August 8, 2002 and filed with the SEC on
August 12, 2002, and the form of which for 199,306 shares is included as an exhibit to Summit’s quarterly report on
Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 and filed with the SEC on August 14, 2000. The options for
254,732 shares vested one-fourth each year commencing November 1, 2000; however, under their change of control
provisions, all the options became vested upon Marshall T. Leeds acquiring a majority interest in Summit. The




terms of the options for 199,306 shares are the same as the other options except that they vested immediately upon
grant, with an exercise price of $2.50 per share. The unexercised portion of the options expire on May 16, 2010,
unless terminated earlier in the event of termination of employment: (i) three months after voluntary termination by
the optionee, (ii) immediately upon termination for cause (defined as willful misconduct or gross negligence), (iii)
12 months after termination by reason of disability; (iv) 12 months after the optionee’s death; and (v) immediately in
the event that the optionee files any lawsuit or arbitration claim against Summit, or any of its affiliates.

The optionees may pay the exercise price with respect to their options either in cash, by check, with already
owned shares of common stock of Summit that have been held by the optionee for at least six (6) months (or such
other shares as will not cause Summit to recognize for financial accounting purposes a charge for compensation
expense), by delivery of a properly executed exercise notice together with documentation required by Summit to
effectuate a “cashless exercise,” a combination of the above, or such other consideration or in such other manner as
may be determined by Summit. The option agreements provide for appropriate adjustment of the number of shares
subject to the options and the exercise price of the options in the event of any increase or decrease in the number of
issued and outstanding shares of Summit’s capital stock resulting from a stock dividend, a recapitalization or other
capital adjustment of Summit. Summit has discretion to make appropriate anti-dilution adjustments to outstanding
options in the event of a merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Summit or a sale or other disposition of
substantially all of Summit’s assets.

The options are not assignable or transferable, other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.
During the lifetime of the optionee, an option is exercisable only by him or her. Subject to vesting, the options may
be exercised, in whole or in part, at any time prior to termination or expiration.

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders — Warrants. Summit’s board of directors
authorized the issuance of up to 2,000,000 common stock purchase warrants, at an exercise price of $.30 per share,
which warrants will be issued to selling broker/dealers in connection with Summit’s common stock private offering
which commenced in October 2002 and which was terminated on March 19, 2003. As of December 31, 2002,
530,000 of such common stock purchase warrants had been earned by selling broker/dealers. Since the private
placement is now closed, Summit will be issuing warrant agreements representing those warrants (and an additional
490,000 warrants earned as of the close of the private placement on March 19, 2003), which will have a term of 5
years and will contain, among other provisions, the mechanics of exercise, issuance of the shares upon the payment
of the exercise price, and certain piggy-back registration rights.

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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When used in conjunction in the following discussions, the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and sitnilar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cause results to differ materially from those projected, including, but
not limited to, those set forth in “Factors That May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Our Stock” of this
Item 6.

Overview of the Company

Summit, a NASD member firm, is a licensed, independent broker-dealer offering financial services to
clients across the country through Registered Representatives working as independent contractors and employees
out of Summit’s branch and non-branch offices.

In 1997, we began an aggressive expansion of new branch offices. In order to accomplish this, it was
necessary to build up our infrastructure, including additional management and staff personnel, computer systems
and offices. These increased expenditures resulted in lower earnings and the need for additional capital infusions,
Therefore, from 1997 through 2002, our financial statements reflect significant losses during this period of building




current and future revenues, while we were raising the necessary capital through private offerings of our capital
stock.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenues decreased in fiscal 2002 by $892,733, or -12.7%, to $6,154,854 from $7,047,587 in fiscal 2001.
This decrease was primarily due to the downturn in the economy and the related impact on the financial markets,
which in turn reduced investor activity and lowered our revenues.

Expenses increased in fiscal 2002 by $178,529, or 2.4%, to $7,773,864 from $7,595,335 in fiscal 2001.
The higher expenses were largely attributable to the increase in legal and professional fees, due in part to the stock
transaction as described under the Change of Control section in Item 1 above. These costs increased by $145,642, or
92%, to $303,265 from $157,623 in fiscal 2001.

Non-cash expenses for amortization of unearned stock compensation increased in fiscal 2002 by $83,834, .
to $285,224 from $201,390 in fiscal 2001.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2000

Revenues increased in fiscal 2001 by $67,901, or 1.0%, to $7,047,587 from $6,979,686 in fiscal 2000,
This small increase was primarily due to the downturn in the economy and the related impact on the financial
markets, which in turn reduced investor activity and lowered our revenues. In addition, the events of September 11,
2001 caused substantial disruptions in our industry and in our business as well. Specifically, our revenues for the
third and fourth quarters were negatively affected by these circumstances, :

Expenses decreased in fiscal 2001 by $29,710, or .4%, to $7,595,335 from $7,625,045 in fiscal 2000. The
reduction was largely attributable to lower operating costs, specifically the reduction in payroll related costs due to
personnel layoffs following the events of September 11, 2001. Total operating expenses decreased by $292,682 to
$1,749,167 in 2001 from $2,041,849 in 2000.

Non-cash expenses for amortization of unearned stock compensation decreased in fiscal 2001 by $147,638;
to $201,390 from $349,028 in fiscal 2000.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our cash flows from operations have been negative and therefore have been funded by stock
issuances. There can he no assurance that in the future we will not need to raise additional capital in order to meet
operating costs. We are presently attempting to increase revenue primarily through the acquisition of new branch
offices

On October 14, 2002, we-commenced a common stock private offering of up to 20,000,000 shares of our
common stock to accredited investors at a purchase price of $.25 per share. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we received $2,050,000 in cash proceeds from the sale of 8,200,000 shares of common stock related to the
private placement. This offering closed in March 2003 and at March 19, 2003, we had received $3,010,000 in cash
proceeds from the sale of 12,040,000 shares of common stock related to the private placement. -

Our net cash used in operations was $(1,190,711) for the year ended December 31, 2002 and $(263,535) for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The $927,176 decrease in cash flows was primarily the result of our net loss of
$(1,619,010) for fiscal 2002.




Cash flows from financing activities were $2,766,169 in fiscal year 2002 and $176,983 in fiscal year 2001.
The $2,589,186 increase in cash resulted from our common stock private offering, as well as from the stock
transaction as described under the Change of Control discussion in Item 1 above.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, Marshall T. Leeds, the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, exercised an option for 1,400,000 shares of common stock at $.25 per share, for gross proceeds to
the Company of $350,000.

Significant Business Relationships

On January 26, 1994, we entered into a clearing agreement with First Clearing Corporation, a subsidiary of
First Union Bank (formerly Wheat First Securities, Inc.), to execute securities orders and maintain accounts for
clients on behalf of our company.

On November 1, 2000, we entered into a second clearing agreement with Dain Correspondent Services, a
subsidiary of Dain Rauscher Incorporated, to execute securities orders and maintain accounts for clients on behalf of

our company.
Factors That May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Qur Stock

We operate in a rapidly changing environment that involves numerous risks, some of which are beyond our
control. The following discussion highlights some of these risks.

We have had recent losses. We realized net losses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 and
2001 of $1,619,010 and $547,748 respectively, and we cannot assure you that we will be profitable in the near future
or that our revenues will grow. Additionally, our revenues and profitability have been, and may continue to be,
negatively impacted by current economic conditions as well as the armed conflict in Iraq.

Our business could be harmed by market volatility, declines in general economic conditions and
other securities industry risks. Our revenues are derived primarily from securities brokerage and related services,
and we expect this business to continue to account for almost all of our revenues. We, like other securities firms, are
directly affected by economic and political conditions (including, but not limited to, acts of war, terrorismi, etc.},
broad trends in business and finance, and changes in the conditions of the securities markets in which our customers
trade. Over the past several years, the securities markets in the United States have fluctuated considerably. A
downturn in these markets such as we have experienced during the past year, adversely affects our operating results.
In major stock market declines, many firms in the securities industry suffer financial losses, and the level of
individual investor trading activity decreases after these events. When trading volume is low, our profitability is
adversely affected because a significant portion of our costs does not vary with revenue. For these reasons, severe
market fluctuations have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Some
of our competitors with more diversified business lines might withstand such a downturn in the securities industry
better than we would.

Our business relies heavily on computers and other electronic systems and capacity constraints and
failures of these systems could harm our business. As our business expands, we face risks relating to the need to
expand and upgrade our transaction processing systems, network infrastructure and other aspects of our technology.
While many of our systems are designed to accommodate additional growth without redesign or replacement, we
may nevertheless need to make significant investments in additional hardware and software to accommodate growth.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to predict accurately the timing or rate of such growth, or expand and
upgrade our systems and infrastructure on a timely basis. Additionally, our business may be negatively impacted by
acts of cyberterrorism.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and compliance failures could adversely affect our
business. The securities industry in the jurisdictions in which we operate is subject to extensive regulation covering
all aspects of the securities business. The various governmental authorities and industry self-regulatory
organizations that supervise and regulate us generally have broad enforcement powers to censure, fine, issue cease-
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and-desist orders or suspend or expel us or any of our officers or employees who violate applicable laws or
regulations. Our ability to comply with all applicable laws and rules is largely dependent on our establishment and
maintenance of compliance and reporting systems, as well as our ability to attract and retain qualified compliance
and other personnel. We could be subject to disciplinary or other regulatory or legal actions in the future due to
noncompliance. In addition, it is possible that any past noncompliance could subject us to future civil lawsuits, the
outcome of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

In addition, we use the Internet to provide information to our customers. Due to the increasing popularity
of the Internet, it is possible that new laws and regulations may be adopted dealing with such issues as user privacy,
content and pricing. Such laws and regulations might increase our cost of using, or limit our ability to use, the
Internet as a distribution channel. In addition, the growth of the Internet as a means of conducting international
business has raised many legal issues regarding, among other things, the circumstances in which countries or other
Jurisdictions have the right to regulate Internet services that may be available to their citizens from service providers
located elsewhere. In many cases, there are no laws, regulations, judicial decisions or governmental interpretations
that clearly resolve these issues. This uncertainty may adversely affect our ability to use the Internet to expand our
international operations, and creates the risk that we could be subject to disciplinary sanctions or other penalties for
failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations.

We face substantial competition which could reduce our market share and harm our financial
performance. All aspects of our business are highly competitive. We compete directly with national and regional
full service broker-dealers and, to a lesser extent, with discount brokers, dealers, investment banking firms,
investment advisors and certain commercial banks. The financial services industry has become considerably more -
concentrated as numerous securities firms have either ceased operations or have been acquired by or merged into
other firms. These mergers and acquisitions have increased competition from these firms, many of which have
significantly greater equity capital and financial and other resources than we do. With respect to retail brokerage
activities, certain regional firms with which we compete have operated in certain markets longer than we have and
have established long-standing client relationships. In addition, we expect competition from commercial banks to
increase because of recent and anticipated legislative and regulatory initiatives in the United States to remove or
relieve certain restrictions on commercial banks’ securities activities. We also compete with others in the financial
services industry in recruiting new employees and retaining current employees.

We expect to face increasing competition from companies offering electronic brokerage services, which is
a rapidly developing industry. These competitors may have lower costs or provide fewer services, and may offer
certain customers more attractive pricing or other terms, than we offer. In addition, disintermediation may occur as
issuers attempt to sell their securities directly to purchasers, including sales using electronic media such as the
Internet. To the extent that issuers and purchasers of securities transact business without the assistance of financial
intermediaries like us, our operating results could be adversely affected.

We may be unable to hire, integrate or retain qualified personnel. Most aspects of our business are
dependent on highly skilled individuals. We devote considerable resources to recruiting, training and compensating
these individuals. In addition, one component of our strategy is to increase market penetration by recruiting
experienced Registered Representatives. We cannot assure that these recruiting efforts will be successful or, if
successful, that they will enhance our business, results of operations, or financial condition.

Competition for key personnel is intense. We cannot assure that losses of key personnel due to such
competition, or for other reasons, will not occur in the future. The loss of any key employee, particularly Marshall
T. Leeds, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, could materially and adversely affect our operating results.
We have applied for key man life insurance on Mr. Leeds, although there can be no assurance that such insurance
will be obtained. ’ ' :

While we generally do not have employment agreements with employees other than senior management,
we attempt to retain employees with incentives such as incentive compensation plans, stock issuances or other
investment opportunities conditioned on continued employment, and options to buy stock that vest over a number of
years of employment. These incentives, however, may be insufficient in light of the increasing competition for
experienced professionals in the securities industry, particularly if our stock price were to decline, or fail to
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appreciate sufficiently. If that happened, our benefit plans might no longer be a competitive incentive for our key
employees to stay with us.

Failure to introduce new services and products in a timely manner may affect our ability to compete
effectively. Qur future success will depend in large part on our ability to develop and enhance our services and
products. We operate in a very competitive industry in which the ability to develop and deliver advanced services
through the Internet and other channels is a key competitive factor. There are significant technical risks in the
development of new or enhanced services and products, including the risk that we will be unable to:

e effectively use new technologies;
e adapt our services and products to emerging industry standards; or
o develop, introduce and market enhanced or new services and products.

Historically, we have been able to develop and introduce enhanced or new products and services in
response to market and customer requirements and emerging industry standards. However, if in the future we are
unable to develop and introduce enhanced or new services and products quickly enough to respond to market or
customer requirements or to comply with emerging industry standards, or if these services and products do not
achieve market acceptance, our business, financial condition and operating results could be materially adversely
affected.

We need to comply with stringent capital requirements. Many of the regulatory agencies, securities
exchanges and other industry self-regulatory organizations that regulate us have stringent rules with respect to the
maintenance of specific levels of net capital by securities broker-dealers. Net capital is the net worth of a broker or
dealer, less deductions for certain types of assets. If we fail to maintain the required net capital, we may be subject
to suspension or revocation of our licenses, which could ultimately lead to us being liquidated. If such net capital
rules are changed or expanded, or if there is an unusually large charge against net capital, we might be required to
limit or discontinue those portions of our business that require the intensive use of capital. A large operating loss or
charge against net capital could adversely affect our ability to expand or even maintain our present levels of
business. '

Because we rely on encryption technology, our business is vulnerable to security risks which may
compromise our customer transaction data. A significant barrier to Internet commerce is the secure transmission
of confidential information over public networks. We rely on third-party encryption and authentication technology
to facilitate secure transmission of confidential information. We cannot assure you that advances in computer and
cryptography capabilities or other developments will not result in a compromise of the algorithms we use to protect
customer transaction data.

Our rapid growth has placed significant demands on our management and other resources and is
likely to continue. To manage the currently anticipated growth of our business, we will need to attract, hire and
retain highly skilled and motivated officers and employees. In particular, we expect that a need for increased
staffing will continue for service personnel to support the expansion of our branch offices. We will also need to
continue improving our existing systems, and/or implement new systems, for transaction processing, operational and
financial management and training, integrating and managing our growing employee base. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to attract the employees or conduct the system improvements necessary to manage this growth
effectively or that we will be able to achieve the rate of growth we have experienced in the past.

We may have difficulty integrating businesses and/or generating acceptable returns from future
acquisitions. As part of our long-term growth strategy, we evaluate the acquisition of other companies, assets or
product lines that would complement or expand our business in attractive service markets or that would broaden our
customer relationships. We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify suitable acquisition candidates
available for sale at reasonable prices, consummate any acquisition or successfully integrate any acquired business
into our operations. The success of any completed acquisition will depend in large measure on our ability to
integrate the operations of the acquired business with our operations and otherwise to maintain and improve the
results of operations of the acquired business. Acquisitions involve a number of special risks and present financial,
managerial and operational challenges, including diversion of management's attention, unanticipated events or




circumstances, existence of unknown liabilities, potential disputes with sellers, and adverse effects on our reported
garmings per share in the event acquired intangible assets become impaired. An acquisition increases the risk that
any business may lose customers or employees, including key employees of the acquired business. An acquired
business could under perform relative to our expectations and we may not realize the value we expect from the
acquisition. Adverse market conditions or poor investment or other performance by an acquired company may
adversely affect revenue. We could also experience financial or other setbacks if an acquired company has
problems of which we are not aware. Although we conduct due diligence reviews of potential acquisition
candidates, we may not identify all material liabilities or risks related to acquisition candidates. Some or all of these
risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further,
future acquisitions may further increase our leverage or, if we issue equity securities to pay for the acquisitions, our
shareholders could suffer dilution of their interests.

There are operational risks to our business. There is considerable fluctuation during any year and from
year-to-year in the volume of transactions we must process. We record transactions and post our books on a daily
basis. Operations personnel monitor operations to determine compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
Failure to keep current and accurate books and records can render us liable to dlsc1plmary action by governmental
~and self—regulatory authorities, as well as to claims by our clients.

We depend on our headquarters and operations center for continued operation of our business. A disaster
directly affecting our headquarters or operations center may have a material adverse impact on our ability to
continue to operate our business without interruption. Although we have disaster recovery programs in place, there
can be no assurance that these will be sufficient to mitigate the harm that may result from such a disaster. In
addition, insurance and other safeguards might only partially relmburse us for our losses.

Our exposure to possible securities litigation could adversely affect our business. From time to time
we are engaged in various legal and regulatory proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Many aspects
of the securities brokerage business involve substantial risks of liability. In recent years, there has been an
increasing incidence of litigation involving the securities brokerage industry, including class action and other suits
that generally seek substantial damages, including in some cases punitive damages. We currently maintain errors
and omissions insurance, the proceeds of which may help to reduce the amount we may otherwise be required to pay
with respect to certain types of claims. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to obtain errors and
omissions insurance in the future, or that if it can be obtained, that the price for such insurance will be reasonable, or
that even if such insurance is in force the amount of any award will not exceed the maximum coverage provided by -
such insurance, in which case we will be required to pay any uncovered portion. While it is not possible to
determine with certainty the outcome of these matters, we are of the opinion the eventual resolution of such
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or operating results. Any such litigation
brought in the future could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may not be able to completely protect ourselves from various forms of business interruption.
Although we maintain business interruption insurance, the net proceeds from such insurance may not be sufficient to
cover lost revenues and earnings. Additionally, in the future, it may not be possible to obtain business interruption
insurance on terms that management deems acceptable, especially if such interruption relates to acts of terror,
including acts of cyberterrorism.

We may have to indemnify our directors and officers for certain actions. Our Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation require us to indemnify (to the fullest extent permitted under Florida law) each of our
directors and officers against liabilities imposed upon them (including reasonable amounts paid in settlement) and
expenses incurred by them in connection with any claim made against them or any action, suit or proceeding to
which they may be a party by reason of their being or having been directors or officers of our company. The
foregoing provisions may reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and may discourage or deter
shareholders or management from suing directors for breaches of their duty of care, even though such an action, if
successful, might otherwise benefit our shareholders and us. We maintain officers and directors liability insurance
coverage in the amount of $1 million. There can be no assurance that such insurance will be available in the future,
or that if available, it will be available on terms that are acceptable to us. Furthermore, there can be no assurance
that the insurance coverage provided will be sufficient to cover the amount of any judgment awarded against an
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officer or director (either individually or in the aggregate). Consequently, if such judgment exceeds the coverage
under the policy, we may be forced to pay such difference.

Item 7. Financial Statements.

The financial statements required by this item are set forth on pages F-1 through F-18 and are incorporated
herein by this reference. :

Item 8. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

Effective Octaber 4, 2001, we dismissed Hoyman, Dobson & Company, P.A. as the independent auditors
of our financial statements, and appointed Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A., as our new independent auditors. The
decision to change accountants was approved by our Board of Directors.

No report of Hoyman, Dobson & Company, P.A. on our financial statements for the past two years
contained an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was any such report qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles. During the two most recent fiscal years and through the date of
its letter, there were no disagreements nor differences of opinion with Hoyman on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not
resolved to the satisfaction of Hoyman, would cause it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreements
in connection with its report. During the two most recent fiscal years and through the date of its letter, Hoyman did
not advise us of any events as listed in paragraphs (1) through (3) of Item 304(a)(1)(iv)(B) of Regulation S-B.

We have furnished Hoyman with a copy of our above statements, which are made in response to Item 304
(a)(1) of the SEC Regulation S-B and have requested that Hoyman furnish us with a letter addressed to the SEC,

stating whether or not Hoyman agrees with such statements. A copy of Hoyman’s letter, dated March 24, 2003 is
attached as an exhibit to this Annual Report.

PART III

Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance with Section
16(a) of the Exchange Act.. '

The executive officers and directors of the Company are as follows:

Name Age Title Director

Marshall T. Leeds 47 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Richard Parker 51 Vice Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Operating
Officer :

Mark F. Caulfield © 44 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

Ronald F. Caprilla 51 Vice President — Operations

Gregory J. Bentley 45 Executive Vice President

Steven C. Jacobs 42 Executive Vice President and Director

Sanford B. Cohen 46 Director

Harry S. Green 61 Director

Marshall T. Leeds, Chairman Of The Board and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Leeds acquired a
controlling interest in the Company on May 22, 2002 whereupon he became the Company's Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. From March 22, 2002 to May 22, 2002, he was engaged by the Company as its Director of
Recruiting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Leeds was most recently Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
First Union Securities Financial Network, Inc. Prior tojoining First Union, Mr. Leeds served as Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of JW Genesis Financial Corp., a publicly traded investment banking and securities
brokerage concern that he co-founded in 1983. JW Genesis Financial Corp. was acquired by First Union Securities
Financial Network, Inc. on January 1, 2001. Mr. Leeds is a past Chairman of the National Investment Bankers




Association, Inc. and also served on the Independent Contractor Firm Committee of the Securities Industry
Association.

Richard Parker, Vice Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Parker
served as our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since founding the Company in 1993 until May
22, 2002 when he became the Company’s Vice Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Operating Officer.
From 1991 until he founded the Company as a NASD licensed broker/dealer in 1993, Mr. Parker was the branch
manager of Security Service Network in Knoxville, Tennessee. Prior to joining Security Service Network, Mr.
Parker served, from 1989 to 1991 as the branch manager of Anchor National Financial, a SunAmerica company, in
Melbourne, Florida that was in the business of insurance products and securities brokerage. From 1986 until 1989,
Mr. Parker was a licensed securities and insurance representative with the Indialantic, Florida office of Dean Witter.
Prior to his association with Dean Witter, Mr. Parker co-owned and operated R/D Parker Realty, a franchise of
Century 21, from 1975 until 1986, from which he sold, developed built and managed real estate projects, primarily
throughout Polk County. ‘

Mark Caulfield, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer, Mr, Caulfield has served as our
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer since January 1998. Mr. Caulfield is a Certified Public Accountant
with over 23 years in financial management, serving in such key roles as Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of
Finance and Administration, as well as Controller. During 1997-98, Mr. Caulfield served as CFO of Kallmart
Telecommunications, a communications service provider. Prior to 1997, he had been involved with a number of
similar rapidly growing companies, in such industries as hospitality management, travel and tourism, restaurants,
and service contracting. He has served on numerous business, charitable, and community boards and committees.
He and his family currently devote a great deal of time to church and Rotary involvement. He is also a member of
several professional associations, including the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Gregory J. Bentley, Executive Vice President. Mr. Bentley is a financial services executive with over 20
years experience focusing on strategic marketing and product development in the financial services industry. He was
recently Senior Vice President, Director of Insurance, for JWGenesis Financial Corp., Boca Raton, Florida, from
1999 t0.2001, where he was responsible for developing the sales and marketing of annuities and other insurance
products. Prior to joining that company, he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Empire Financial
Services, Longwood, Florida, from 1991 to 1999, responsible for operations and the development, sales and
marketing of financial products. Prior to 1991, Mr. Bentley was Vice President and National Insurance Manger for

Invest Financial Services, Tampa, Florida and Vice President of Empire Agency, Inc., Longwood, Florida, a
subsidiary of Empire of America, FSB. Mr. Bentley received his B.A. in Business Administration in 1976 from
State University College of New York. S

‘ Steven C. Jacobs, Executive Vice President/Director. Mr. Jacobs was formerly the Managing Partner of
Tucker Ridge Financial Partners, LLC, a private investment banking and financial advisory firm serving emerging
growth and middle market companies. For the ten year period prior to founding Tucker Ridge in October 2000, Mr.
Jacobs held several senior executive investment banking positions, including having served for five years as the
Senior Vice President and Managing Director of Investment Banking for JWCharles Financial Services, Inc., as well
as a founding partner and Managing Director of Pinnacle Partners and its related entities. Immediately following his
graduation from the University of Florida in 1982 with a Bachelors in Accounting, Mr. Jacobs held audit, tax and
consulting positions with the international accounting and consulting firm of Deloitte Haskins + Sells (currently
Deloitte & Touche), and subsequent thereto served as Manager of Tax and Special Projects for Microtel, Inc., one of
the first independent long distance carriers in Florida (currently part of MCI Group). Mr. Jacobs also served as Chief
Financial Officer for Corporate Securities Group, Inc., an NASD member broker/dealer (currently a sub51dlary of
First Union Securities).

Ronald Caprilla, Vice President - Operations. Mr. Caprilla has been Vice President of Operations of the
Company since December 2000. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Caprilla had been a financial consultant and
registered sales representative with A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc, Melbourne, Florida, from 1982 to December 2000.
Mr. Caprilla has worked in financial services during his entire career starting in military finance for the United
States Army — Ft. Benning, Columbus, Georgia, after which he received a Bachelors Degree in Finance from the
University of Central Florida, Orlando, Fiorida. Subsequent to graduation, he spent two years in the Peace Corps
working for a Columbia development bank where he set up business management systems for small companies.
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Upon his return to the United States and prior to joining A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc., Mr. Caprilla purchased and
operated for four years a General Business Services franchise in Melbourne, Florida, that provided accounting and
tax services to small businesses.

Sanford B. Cohen, Director. In 1985, Mr. Cohen founded Prescott Valley Broadcasting Co., Inc., owner
of KPPV- FM and KQNA-AM radio stations in Prescott Valley, Arizona, and has been its President since its
inception. From 1982 to 1984, Mr. Cohen was Vice President of National Phonecasting Co., a joint venture with
Gannett Broadcasting Corp., a private company engaged in telephone broadcasting of financial information. Mr.
Cohen received his B.A. degree in Economics in 1979 from Michigan State University. Mr. Cohen is not employed
full-time at Summit.

Harry S. Green, Director. Mr. Green was elected a director of Summit in August 1998. From 1966 until
he retired in 1994, Mr. Green worked for Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. After graduation from University of Arkansas in
1970, he started in Wal-Mart’s management program and was promoted to District Manager in 1977. In 1984, he
was promoted to Regional Vice President and in 1988 he was Regional Vice President of Sam's, an affiliate of Wal-
Mart. From 1990 to 1994, he worked with SuperCenters and was Operations Director for Bud's, an affiliate of Wal-
Mart. Mr. Green is not employed full-time at Summit.

Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based solely upon a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 and amendments to these forms furnished to us, all parties
subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act filed all such required reports with
respect to fiscal year 2002. )

Item 10. Executive Compensation.

The following table sets forth all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid for all services rendered to
Summit during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, and 2002 by our Chief Executive Officer and any
executive officer who received compensation in excess of $100,000 during those years. (each a “Named Executive
Officer”). '

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term
Annual Compensatjon' Compensation Awards
Name And Principal Fiscal Securities Underlying All Other
Position : Year Salary Bonus Options Compensation
Marshall-T. Leeds 12/31/02 $35,000 -0- 7,000,000 -0-
Chairman and Chief 12/31/01 -0- . -0- o -0- : -0-
Executive Officer 12/31/00 -0- -0- X -0- -0-
Richard Parker , 12/31/02 $73,627 -0- 900,000 $134,742©
Vice Chairman, President 12/31/01 $77,675 -0- 91,860 $1,539
and Chief Operating Officer 12/31/00 $45,756 -0- 404,440 -0-

(1) The amounts reflected in the above table do not include any amounts for perquisites and other personal benefits extended to
the Named Executive Officer. The aggregate amount of such compensation for the named executive officer is less than
"10% of the total annual salary and bonus.

(2) Represents 7,000,000 options granted in 2002 that are exercisable at $.25 per share until December 31, 2007.

(3) Represents 400,000 options granted in 2002 which vest over three years exercisable at $.50 per share until December 31,
2007, and 500,000 options granted in 2002 that are exercisable at $.10 per share until December 31, 2007.

(4) Represents 10,000 options granted in 2001 that are exercisable at $1.00 per share until December 31, 2011, and 81,860
options granted in 2001 that are exercisable at $ .50 per share until December 31, 2011.

(5) Represents options granted in 2000 that are exercisable at $2.50 per share until 2010, 394,440 of which replaced options
granted in 1999.

(6) Represents commissions paid to Mr. Parker in connection with trades executed by him on behalf of his clients.
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Stock Options Granted in Fiscal 2002

The following table sets forth certain information concemmg grants of options made during fiscal 2002 to the Named
Executive Officers. .

Percent
Number of of Total
Securities Options Exercise Fair Market
Underlying Granted to or Base Value .
Options Employees Price on Date of Expiration
Name Grated(#) ‘ in 2002 ($/Sh) Grant Date
Marshall T. Leeds......cc.cocoeveninnnnnnnn 7,000,000 1% $0.25 - 820 12/31/2007
Richard Parker.l:.....c.ocoooucreenninicninineenns -~ 500,000 - 5% 0.10 $.20 12/31/2007
400,000 4% 0.50 $20 12/31/2007

Aggregate Stock Option Exercises and Year-End Option Value Table

The following table sets forth certain lnformanon concerning option exercises in fiscal 2002, the number of stock options
held by the Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2002 and the value (based on the fair market value of a share of stock at
fiscal year-end) of in-the-money options outstanding as of such date.

Number of Unexercised Value of Unexercised

Number of Options Held at In-the-Money Options

Shares Acquired Value Fiscal Year-End(#) at Fiscal Year-End®

Name on Exercise (#) Realized($)(1)  Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Marshall T. Leeds ......cccooernivivennee 1,400,000 1,064,000 5,600,000 - $4,256,000 -
Richard Parker...........ccooovcriricrinnne - - 500,000 - $455,000 -
s - - ) - 400,000 - . $204,000
- S - 496,300 - -

(1) Options are in-the-money if the fair market value of the common stock exceeds the exercise price of the option.- The closing
sale price for the Company's common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Trading and Market Services on December 31, 2002
was $1.01 per share. Value is calculated by multiplying (a) the difference between $1.01 and the option exercise price by (b) the
number of shares of common stock underlying the option.

Employment Agreements

- The Company entered into an employment agreement with Marshall T. Leeds dated March 22, 2002
pursuant to which he was employed by the Company as its Director of Recruiting in connection with its broker
recruitment efforts and other strategic matters. In connection with his employment, Mr. Le€ds received an option
exercisable for 7,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $.25 per share pursuant to an option
agreement dated March 22, 2002. On May 22, 2002, his employment agreement was amended and restated for a
term of two years and pursuant to which Mr. Leeds became the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chairman.
The employment agreement, as amended and restated, provides that, in consideration for Mr. Leed's services, he is
to be paid a base salary of $50,000 and will be reviewed annually. He will receive an override or fee equal to 3% of
the first twelve month's gross production generated by brokers recruited by him who remain with the Company for
at least 12 months. Mr. Leeds will also receive commission income generated by him for his production as a
registered representative with the Company. The agreement provides for a 12-month severance arrangement upon
termination without cause or in connection with a change of control, as such terms are defined in the employment
agreement Mr. Leeds has the right to terminate the employrnent agreement upon 60-days notice to the Company.

- Effective May 22, 2002, the Company entered into a two-year employment agreement with Richard Parker
who is the Company's President, Chief Operating Officer and Vice Chairman. The employment agreement provides
that, in consideration for Mr. Parker's services, he is to be paid a base salary of $50,000 initially which will be
subject to increase upon specified Company performance goals being met. He will receive an override or fee equal
to 3% of the first twelve month's gross production generated by brokers recruited by him or his affiliate, Educational
Seminars of America, Inc., who remain with the Company for at least 12 months. Mr. Parker will also receive
commission income generated by him for his production as a registered representative with the Company. The
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agreement provides for a 12-month severance arrangement upon termination without cause or in connection with a
change of control, as such terms are defined in the employment agreement. Mr. Parker has the right to terminate the
employment agreement upon 60-days notice to the Company. Mr. Parker received an immediately exercisable
option for 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $.10 per share, and an option for
400,000 shares at an exercise price of $.50 per share, vesting over three years, pursuant to option agreements dated
March 22, 2002.

2000 Incentive Compensation Plan

Our 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) was approved by our Board of Directors and
shareholders in 2000. Our Plan is currently administered by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Plan provides
for the grant of options (incentive and non-statutory), stock appreciation rights and restricted stock to officers,
directors, employees and independent contractors capable of contributing to the Company’s performance. The
Company has reserved an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares of common stock for grants under the Plan, pursuant to an
amendment to the Plan approved by the shareholders in August 2002. Incentive stock options may be granted only
to employees eligible to receive them under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. As of December 31,
2002, the Company had outstanding options (only non-statutory) for a total of 2,218,513 shares of the Company’s
common stock, leaving a total of 1,781,487 shares available for future grants. Optiors have a term of ten years,
unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan and applicable stock option agreements. The
exercise prices of the options range from $.50 per share to $2.50 per share, and generally have scheduled vesting.
Upon expiration of unexercised options, the unpurchased shares subject to such options will again be available for
purposes of the Plan.

Options Granted Outside of Our 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan '

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding options to purchase an aggregate of 7,653,646 shares of
common stock with a range of exercise prices from $.10 to $2.50 per share. Options for a total 6,500,000 shares
expire on December 31, 2007, unless terminated earlier in accordance with their terms. All other non-plan options
have a term of ten years from the date of grant unless otherwise terminated in accordance with their terms. Of such
outstanding options granted outside of our Plan, options for approximately 6,961,701 shares are immediately
exercisable as of December 31, 2002.

Director Compensation

In serving on our Board, directors receive compensation of $350 for each meeting attended, as well as the
grant of stock options from time to time at the discretion of our Board. Directors are also reimbursed for their
reasonable expenses incurred in attending Board or Committee meetings. Additional fees and options may be
granted for chairing special committees, such as the Audit Committee. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had
granted options for a total of 176,000 shares of common stock to directors in connection with their service on the
Board or a committee.

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE
- BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

General

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors during fiscal year 2002 consisted of Sanford B.
Cohen and Steven C. Jacobs, effective August 24, 2002. Until February 2003, each Compensation Committee
member was a non-employee director of the Company. On February 3, 2003, Mr. Jacobs became an employee of the
Company. The Board intends to expand the Compensation Committee to include at least one additional non-
employee director.

The Compensation Committee administers the Company’s executive compensation program, monitors

corporate performance and its relationship to compensation for executive officers, and makes appropriate
recommendations concerning matters of executive compensation.
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Compensation Philosophy

The Company has developed and implemented a compensation program that is designed to attract, motivate,
reward and retain the broad-based management talent required to achieve the Company’s business objectives and
increase shareholder value. There are two major components of the Company’s compensation program: base salary
and incentives, each of which is intended to serve the overall compensation philosophy.

Base Salary

The Company’s salary levels for executive officers, including its Chief Executive Officer, are intended to be
consistent with competitive pay practices of similarly-sized companies within the industry. In determining executive
officers’ salaries, the Compensation Committee considers level of responsibility, competitive trends, the financial
performance and resources of the Company, general economic conditions, as well as factors relating to the particular
individual, including overall job performance, level of experience and prior service, ability, and knowledge of the job.
However, the base salary for Marshall T. Leeds, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, is currently
not competitive with other similarly situated executives and this was intentionally negotiated between the Company
and Mr. Leeds at the time he acquired control of the Company due to the Company’s financial situation at that time.
It is anticipated that in the future his compensation will become more competitive as the Company’s performance
improves through an increase in base salary and/or through performance incentives.

Incentives

Incentives consist of stock options and performance bonuses paid in cash. The Compensation Committee
strongly believes that the compensation program should provide employees with an opportunity to increase their
ownership and potential for financial gain from increases in the Company’s stock price. This approach closely aligns
the best interests of shareholders and Registered Representatives, executives and employees. Therefore, executives
and other employees and Registered Representatives are eligible to receive stock options, giving them the right to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a specified price in the future. Stock option grants are determined
by the Company’s Board of Directors for all employees except the two most highly compensated, and as to those
executives, the compensation committee determines stock options. The grant of options is based primarily on-an
individual’s potential contribution to the Company’s growth and profitability, as measured by the market value of the
Company’s common stock.

Respectfully submitted,

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Sanford B. Cohen
Steven C. Jacobs
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Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners.

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 19, 2003 with respect to the beneficial
ownership of common stock by: (i) each shareholder known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the Company’s common stock; (ii) each director; (iii) each executive officer named in the Summary
Compensation Table; and (iv) all executive officers and directors as a group.

Name of Beneficial

Owner(1)(2) No. of shares Percentage
Marshall T. Leeds ....cocovvivvvirniiiiirin e b 16,722,765(3) 51.7%
Richard Parker 4,722,765(4) 14.6%
Harry S. Green (5) oo ireevemnrersioreennneniesenin e insncnenes 117,500 0.4%
Steven C. Jacobs (6) .ooccovveeriiii e 45,000 0.1%
Sanford B. Cohen (7)....cccovovomiieeeeeeeeceeeeees e 20,000 0.1%
All officers and directors

85 @ Zroup (8 PErSONS) wveovreriiciicrierene et 22,259,868(8) 68.9%

(1} Unless otherwise noted, the address of each person or entity listed is Summit Brokerage Services, Inc., 25 Fifth Avenue,
Indialantic, Florida 32903.

(2) Based on 23,140,064 shares actually outstanding, and additional shares deemed to be outstanding as to a particular person in
accordance with the following applicable rules of the SEC. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules
of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Shares of common stock subject to
options, warrants or convertible securities that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of March 19, 2003, are deemed
outstanding for computing the percentage of the person holding such options, warrants or convertible securities but are not
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of any other pefson. Except as indicated by footnote and subject to
community property laws where applicable, the persons named in the tabie have sole voting and investment power with
respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them.

(3) Includes: (a) 6,400,000 shares of common stock; (b) 5,600,000 shares issuable pursuant to options that are exercisable
within the next 60 days; and (c) 4,722,765 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Mr. Parker but for which Mr.
Leeds has sole voting power pursuant to a Shareholders’ Voting Agreement and Irrevocable Proxy (“Voting Agreement”)
granted to him by Mr. Parker and his spouse in connection with the closing of the Leeds Transaction, which shares are
represented as follows: (i) 3,313,595 outstanding shares beneficially owned by Mr. Parker; and (ii) 1,409,170 shares
issuable pursuant to stock options which are exercisable within the next 60 days (the “Voting Trust Shares™). Excludes
200,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options held by Mr. Parker which are not exercisable within the next 60 days, and
which shares are also subject to the Voting Agreement.

(4) Includes (i) 2,743,920 shares of common stock; (ii) 497,675 shares owed jointly with his spouse; (iii) 27,000 shares owned
by his spouse; (iv) 1,249,170 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days; (iv) 45,000
shares he and/or his spouse control as trustees of two foundations and a trust; and (v) 160,000 shares issuable pursuant to
stock options held by his spouse which are exercisable within the next 60 days.

(5) Includes 117,500 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

(6) Includes 45,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days. Excludes 40,000 common
stock purchase warrants to which Mr. Jacobs is entitled.

(7) Includes 20,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

(8) Includes 7,739,508 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within the next 60 days.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

We lease approximately 5,000 square feet of office space for our headquarters from First America Living
Trust, Inc., a company wholly-owned by Mr. Parker (“First America”). Annual lease payments are $105,800. The
lease expires in May 2004, We entered into this lease on May 22, 2002, replacing the previous lease with the same
company. We paid rent under these leases of approximately $133,000 and $109,200 during 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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We advanced expenses for Summit Group of Companies, Inc., wholly-owned by Richard Parker, which
outstanding unpaid balance at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $11,410 and $16,183, respectively. The receivable
is not evidenced in writing.

We reimbursed $96,839 during 2002 to Gold Coast Acquisitions, Inc., wholly-owned by Marshall T. Leeds

(“GCA™), for costs paid on behalf of the Company related to the private placement of our common stock described
in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section under Item 6. :

In connection with sales of common stock in our private placement made during 2003, Steven C. Jacobs, a
director, is entitled to receive 40,000 common stock purchase warrants with an exercise price of $.30 per share.

We believe that the terms of the foregoing arfangéments were no less favorable to us than we could have
obtained from non-affiliated third parties. We anticipate that all future transactions with our affiliates, if any, will be
on terms believed by our management to be no less favorable than are available from unaffiliated third parties and
will be approved by a majority of disinterested directors. .

Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

A. Exhibits

Set forth below is a list of the exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

Number Name

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)

311 Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)

312 Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of lncorporatlon (8)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws (2) :

10.1 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (3) .

10.1.2 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended (9)

10.2 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker.(4)

10.3 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Mark F. Caulfield (4)

10.4 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker (5)

10.5 Employment Agreement between the Company and Mark F. Caulfield (5)

10.6 Secured Demand Note Collateral Agreement between the Company and Summit Group of Companies, Inc.
(©) :

10.7 Amendment to Secured Demand Note Collateral Agreement (6)

10.8 Employment Agreement between the Company and Ronald Caprilla* (7)

10.9 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds, dated March
22,2002 (8)

10.10 Employment Agreement between the Company and Marshall T. Leeds dated March 22, 2002-(8)

10.11 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Marshall T. Leeds dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.12 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.13 Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated March 22, 2002 (8)

10.14 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard Parker dated May 22, 2002 (10)

10.15 _ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Marshall T. Leeds dated May 22
2002 (10}

10.16 Shareholders’ V oting A greement and I rrevocable Proxy by y and among the Company, Marshall T. Leeds,
Richard Parker and Joan Parker, dated May 22, 2002. (10)

10.17 Commercial Lease between the Company and First America Living Trust, dated May 22, 2002 (10)

10.18 Form of Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and certain investors*

16.1 Letter from Hoyman, Dobson & Company*

211 Subsidiaries of the Company*

99.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002*

99.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002*

21




* Filed herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001,

filed August 20, 2001, file no. 000-29337.
(2) Exhibit 3.2 filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001 was filed

prematurely and subsequently not adopted by the Board of Directors. As a result, the Amended and Restated Bylaws dated
July 21, 2000 remain in effect and were re-filed with, and are incorporated by reference to, the Company’s Quarterly Report
for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 201, on Form 10-QSB, file no. 000-29337.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed July 31, 2000, file no. 000-29337.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s [nformation Statement on Schedule 14C, filed September 26, 2000, file no. 000-

29337.
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000 on Form 10-QSB,

filed August 14, 2000 and amended August 15, 2000, file no. 000-29337.
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001 on Form 10-QSB

filed May 21, 2001, file no. 000-29337.
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 on Form 10-KSB, filed

April 15, 2002, file no. 000-29337.
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002 on Form 10-QSB,

Filed May 24, 2002, file no. 000-29337.
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement filed August 12, 2002, file no. 000-29337.
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002 on Form 10-QSB, filed

August 19, 2002, file no. 000-29337.

B. Reports on Form 8-K

On March 22, 2002, the Compariy filed a Current Report on Form 8-K to annex a press release announcing
the stock purchase agreement between the Company, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds.

On June 6, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K to report the closing of the stock purchase
agreement between it, Richard Parker and Marshall T. Leeds and the acquisition of a controlling interest in the
Company by Mr. Leeds.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
evaluated the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures within 90 days of the filing date of this annual report.
Based upon this evaluation, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that
material information required to be disclosed is included in the reports that it files with the Securities and Exchange

Commission.
There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or, to the knowledge of the

management of the Company, in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the
evaluation date, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Summit Brokerage
Services, Inc. has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 31, 2003

SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC.

/s/ Marshall T. Leeds

Marshall T. Leeds

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of Summit Brokerage Securities, Inc. and'in the capacities and 6n

the dates indicated.

Signature
/s/ Marshall T. Leeds

Marshall T. Leeds

/s/ Mark F. Caulfield

Mark F. Caulfield

/s/ Richard Parker.

Richard Parker

/s/ Steven C. Jacobs

Steven C. Jacobs

/s/ Harry S. Green

Hairry S. Green

Title

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
(principal financial officer)

(Vice Chairman of the Board) President, and Chief
Operating Officer

Executive Vice-President and Director

Director
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March 31, 2003
March 31, 2003
March 31, 2003
March 31, 2003

March 27, 2003




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Marshall T. Leeds, (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc.) certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being prepared; '

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within
90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent
to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: March 31, 2003
/s/ Marshall T, Leeds

Name: Marshall T. Leeds
Title: Chairman of the Board / Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Caulfield, {Chief Financial Officer of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc.) certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent

to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date. March 31, 2003

/s/ Mark Caulfield
Name: Mark Caulfield
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Indialantic, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of Summit Brokerage
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of loss,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 that you
are filing pursuant to Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The information contained in Schedule I is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplemental information required by Rule
17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

/s! Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. :
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
February 17, 2003
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2002

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,607,674
Deposit held at clearing broker 25,045
Deposit held at clearing broker — related party | 45,459
Commissions receivable ' 346,920
Other receivables 109,646
Securities owned, at fair value 3,300
Prepaid expenses » 77,643
Property and equipment, net ' 116,088

Total assets ' : - $ 2,331,775

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities : )
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 210,091
Accrued commission expense ' " : 310,640
Note payable - related party 40,200
Total liabilities ' ) 560,931

Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, 12% cumulative convertible; par value $0.0001
per share; authorized 150,000 shares; 125,000 issued and
outstanding (liquidation preference of $125,000) 13

Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; authorized
50,000,000 shares; 20,200,064 1ssued and 20,192,148

outstanding ‘ 2,020
Additional paid-in capital 6,336,751
Unearned stock compensation o (237,123)
Treasury stock, at cost : (3,718)
Accumulated deficit : (4,327,099)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,770,844

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,331,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Loss
For The Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001

Revenues

Commissions $ 6,065,976 $ 6,899,311

Interest and dividends 76,202 107,811

Other 12,676 40,465

6,154,854 7,047,587

Expenses

Commissions 5,275,867 5,863,693

Employee compensation and benefits 806,909 715,054

Occupancy and equipment 188,253 169,985

Communications . 116,445 129,724

Professional expenses 610,415 283,202

Stock-based compensation 285,224 201,390

Other operating expenses 490,751 232,287

7,773,864 7,595,335

Net loss before income taxes (1,619,010) (547,748)
Provision for income taxes - -
Net loss $ (1,619,010) § (547,748)
Weighted average common shares and

common share equivalents outstanding 10,264,778 4,693,970
Basic and diluted loss per share $  (0.158) $ (0117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For The Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities '
Provision for doubtful accounts
Depreciation
Stock-based compensation
Changes in:
Deposit held at clearing broker
Deposit held at clearing broker — related party
Commission receivable
Other receivables '
Prepaid expenses
Due from related party, net
. Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued commissions expense
Net cash used in operating activities

N

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
(Payment) proceeds on note payable
Issuance of preferred stock
Dividends paid — preferred stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Issuance of treasury stock
Issuance of common stock
Payments on capital lease obligation

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2002 2001
$ (1,619,010) § (547,748)

4,721 -
51,338 56,640
285,224 201,390
17 79

6,051 -
120,598 15,418
92,016 (136,167)
(14,205) (16,658)
- (2,861)
35,783 83,122
(153,244) 83,250
(1,190,711) (263,535)
(11,002) (96,380)
(11,002) (96,380)
(50,000) 50,000
] 125,000

(5,000) -
. (7,800)
12,520 21,419

2,808,649 -

] (11,636)
2,766,169 176,983
1,564,456 (182,932)

43,218 226,150
$ 1,607,674 $ . 437218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

NOTE 1- NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUSINESS - Summit Brokerage Services Inc. (the “Company”) is a National Association of Securities
Dealers (NASD) member firm. The Company is an independent broker-dealer offering financial services
to clients across the country through its 50 independent broker-dealer branch offices.

CONSOLIDATION POLICY - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company’s primary subsidiaries include Summit Holding Group,
Inc. (a holding company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries Summit Financial Group, Inc. (a registered
investment advisor) and SBS Insurance Agency Of Florida, Inc. (an insurance business). Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

DEPOSIT HELD AT CLEARING BROKERS - The Company has an interest-bearing reserve deposit with
certain clearing brokers. These clearing brokers require deposits of all introducing brokers for whom they
transact business. One of the Company’s deposits is from a related party of the Company (see Note 4).

COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE - The Company considers commissions receivable fully collectible;
accordingly, no allowance is required.

SECURITIES OWNED, AT FAIR VALUE - Securities owned are valued at estimated fair value as
determined by management. The resulting differences between cost and estimated fair value are included
in the consolidated statements of loss.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation, for financial
reporting purposes, is primarily based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets, generally 3 to 7 years.

. TREASURY STOCK - Treasury stock is reflected at cost.

COMMISSIONS REVENUE AND EXPENSES - Commissions revenues are recorded on a trade-date
basis. The Company receives commissions on securities fransactions sold by registered representatives of
the branch offices. The Company receives the gross amount of commissions due from the transactions and
remits a percentage of that amount to the registered representatives based on a formal commission payout
schedule maintained with each representative.

INCOME TAXES - Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist primarily of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related to net operating losses.
The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences,
which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred
tax may also be recognized for operating losses and tax credits that are available to offset future taxable
income.
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NOTE 1- NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

LOSS PER SHARE - Basic loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 have been
computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted
loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 are the same as basic, as the dilutive
calculation would have an anti-dilutive effect because of the net loss.

ESTIMATES - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECLASSIFICATIONS - Certain amounts from the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation. ' '

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Computer systems and software $ 126,489
Equipment and furniture 70,040
Leasehold improvements 151,743
Total ‘ 348,272
Less: accumulated depreciation (232,184)
Total property and equipment . $ 116,088

Depreciation expense was $51,338 and $56,640 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. .

NOTE 3- ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts péyable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Accounts payable | - $ 198,479
Accrued wages and other 11,612
_S 210001

NOTE 4 - NOTE PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

On March 31, 2000, the Company entered into a demand note collateral agreement with a corporation
100% owned by a shareholder and officer of the Company. The collateral for the note was held as a
clearing deposit with one of the Company’s clearing firms. The note became due on April 30, 2002 and
accrues interest at 12.0% per annum. As of November 1, 2002, the Company no longer was allowed to
use the subordinated agreement for net capital purposes. As of December 31, 2002, the outstanding
balance is $40,200 and is due on demand. '

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company paid off a $50,000 note payable to an unrelated
third party. '

Cash paid for interest was $22,593 and $22,396 for 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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NOTE 5- COMMON STOCK

On July 16, 1997, the Company established a restricted stock bonus plan as an incentive for employees
and c ertain c onsultants to remain in the e mployment or service o f the Company. T he shares granted
under the plan were in the form of restricted stock and vest over a period ranging from immediately to
four years after the date of .grant of the award. Since the stock issued is subject to continuous
employment or service from the date of the grant award, uneamed compensation is recorded at the fair
market value at the date awarded as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. Compensation and consultant
expense is recognized pro rata over the period during which the shares are earned, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
(“FAS123”). The Company amortized $237,831 and $201,390 of unearned stock compensation and
consultant expenses during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. -

On May 22, 2002, Marshall T. Leeds, in a privately negotiated transaction, purchased an aggregate of
5,000,000 shares of our common stock for a total purchase price of $500,000, or $0.10 per share.
Mr. Leeds became our largest shareholder, as well as our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors. Richard Parker, the Company's former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
became President, Chief Operating Officer and Vice Chairman. Two of our Board members, Mr. Parker
and Harry Green, remained on the Board, and Mr. Leeds and two of his designees comprised a new five-
member Board. Mr. Parker has also granted Mr. Leeds voting control of his beneficially owned shares for
a period of time. Mr. Leeds became a consultant to the Company in March 2002, and an employee in
May, 2002.

In connection with this transaction, on March 15, 2002 and March 28, 2002, Mr. Parker borrowed a total
of $250,000 from Marshall T. Leeds for use by Mr. Parker to purchase a total of 2,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock. On May 17, 2002, Mr. Parker borrowed an additional $100,000 from
Mr. Leeds to purchase an additional 1,000,000 shares of common stock. The total loans of $350,000 were
secured by a pledge to Mr. Leeds from Mr. Parker of the 3,500,000 shares he purchased, plus 2,500,000
other shares of common stock previously owned by Mr. Parker. The loans were drawn from the $500,000
amount contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement paid by Mr. Leeds to purchase 5,000,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock. The loans provided the Company with capital that was needed
immediately in order for it to fund operations and certain of its business obligations. At the closing of the
stock purchase discussed in the preceding paragraph, Mr. Leeds purchased the 3,500,000 shares acquired
by Mr. Parker from the Company with the $350,000 of loan.proceeds, in exchange for the cancellation of
Mr. Parker’s indebtedness to Mr. Leeds for the loans. Mr. Leeds also purchased the remaining 1,500,000
shares for an additional cash payment of $150,000, bringing his total stock purchased to 5,000,000 shares
for a total price of $500,000.

On August 20, 2002, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of
authorized common shares from 20,000,000 to 50,000,000,

On October 9, 2002, 100,000 shares of common stock was issued to outside consultants for services
performed for the Company. The Company recorded $66,000 in unearned stock compensation in the
statement of financial position as the estimated fair value of the stock at the date of issuance.

On October 14, 2002, the Company approved the Common Stock Private Offering (the “Offering”),
which consists of a private placement of up to 20,000,000 shares of its common stock to accredited
investors at a purchase price of $.25 per share. The Company also authorized the issuance of up to
2,000,000 of common stock purchase warrants to selling broker-dealers in the Offering. These warrants
have an exercise price equal to 120% of the per share price of the common stock sold in the Offering and
vest immediately upon issuance. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company issued
8,200,000 shares of common stock related to the Offering for $2,050,000. In addition, as of
December 31, 2002, the Company issued 530,000 warrants to selling broker-dealers at an exercise price
of $.30. These warrants were fair valued in accordance with FAS123 at approximately $390,000. The
entire $390,000 is considered offering costs and was charged against additional paid-in capital, which
resulted in no net effect to equity. Additionally, other Offering costs of approximately $270,000 were
charged against paid-in capital.
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NOTE 5- COMMON STOCK (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer exercised an option
for 1,400,000 shares of common vstock at $.25 per share.

‘At’various other periods during 2002, common stock was issued for cash to various individuals exclusive
of the Offering. During the year ended December 31, 2002, 5,000,000 shares of common stock were
issued for $.10 a share and in July 2002, the Company sold 200,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for
net proceeds of approximately $180,000 in a private placement of Series B Preferred Stock. The Series B
Preferred Stock private placement was subsequently terminated without further sales and the investor’s
shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted into 800,000 shares of common stock of the Company
at an effective conversion rate of $0.25 per share. .

NOTE 6 - PREFERRED STOCK

On March 27, 2002, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to reduce the preferred stock, par
value $.0001. per share, from 5,000,000 authorized shares to 150,000. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company issued 125,000 shares of 12% cumulative convertible preferred stock
for $125,000. The number of shares of common stock which may be issued in respect of the shares of
preferred stock shall be determined by dividing (i) a numerator equal to the number of shares of Series A
12% C onvertible Preferred Stock being c onverted multiplied by 1 15% o f the subscription price, (ii) a
denominator representing the per share price that is the lower of the closing price and the average closing
sale price for the 20 trading days.immediately preceding the Series A conversion date; provided, however,
in no event shall the denominator be less than the subscription price. All such preferred stock is non-
voting stock. The holders of Series A 12% Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, out of
funds legally available for that purpose, cash dividends at the rate of $0.12 per annum, subject to
voluntary conversion. Such dividends shall accrue and be cumulative from the issue date. Dividends
shall be payable in arrears; when and as declared by the Board of Directors, on March 31, June 30,
September 30 and December 31-of each year; provided, however, the first dividend payment date shall
not occur before the last calendar day of the first full fiscal quarter following the issue date. During the
year ended .December 31, 2002, $5,000 in cash dividends was paid. - As of December 31, 2002,
undeclared dividends in arrears approximated $18,300. . In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company's affairs for a price per share which is less than the subscription price set
forth herein, holders of the preferred shares will be entitled to a liquidation preference of $1.00 per
preferred share, plus the dividends set forth above, prior to any distribution to the holders of common
stock in full and complete liquidation of the interest of the holders of preferred shares. In the event that
the Company does not have sufficient funds to pay the full liquidation preference payable to the holders
of preferred shares, and any other shares issued on-a parity with the preferred shares ("Parity Shares"), the
existing funds will be allocated among the holders of all such preferred shares and Parity Shares pro rata
in proportion to the full amounts to which they would respectively be entitled. At any time after
August 1, 2002, the Company may, unless otherwise prevented by law, redeem from the holder thereof,
the holder's preferred shares at the subscription price ($1.00 per share), together with any accrued but
unpaid dividends thereon to and including the date of redemption, in whole or, from time to time, in part.
Any partial redemption shall be allocated among the holders of preferred shares pro rata or by lot, as
determined by the Company.

NOTE 7- TREASURY STOCK

Treasury s;tock is reflected at.cost, and consists of 7,916 and 8,984 shares of common stock at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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NOTE 8- STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

In March 2002, the Company issued to the Company’s current President, COO and Vice Chairman
900,000 options to purchase the Company’s common stock in connection with his employment contract
with the Company. Of this total, 500,000 options have an exercise price of $0.10 per share and vested
upon issuance and 400,000 options have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and vest over a two-year
period. All options expire on December 31, 2007. Stock-based compensation of approximately $50,000
was recorded as a result of issuing these options.

In March 2002, the Company issued to the Company’s current CEO and Chairman of the Board of
Directors, 7,000,000 options to purchase the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per
share. These options vested upon issuance and expire on December 31, 2007. These options were issued
in connection with his employment contract with the Company.

Stock option activity during 2002 and 2001, was as follows:

Weighted-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 ‘ 1,162,723 $ 250
Granted 504,141 $ .77
Forfeited {31,648) $ 250
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 1,635,216 $ 1.97
Granted 10,037,620 $ 0.32
Exercised (1,400,000) $ 25
Forfeited (400,677) $ 130
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 9,872,159 $ 0.56
Shares exercisable at December 31, 2002 8,094,922 $ 055

The range of exercise prices for options and warrants outstanding at December 31, 2002 was $.10 to
$2.50. The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Outstanding Options
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted
Number of Contractual Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life (in years) Exercise Price
$0.10 500,000 5.0 $0.10
$0.25 5,769,905 5.1 $0.25
$0.50 1,755,290 9.3 - $0.50
$0.75 594,215 9.6 $0.75
$1.00 262,690 8.9 $1.00
$2.50 990,059 7.5 $2.50
9,872,159 $0.57
Exercisable Options
Weighted
Number of Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Exercise Price

$0.10- %0.25 : 6.269.905 $0.24
$0.50 - $1.00 868,298 $0.62
$2.50 _ 956,719 $2.50
8,094,922 $ .55
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NOTE 8- STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (Continued)

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had 530,000 warrants outstanding for the purchase of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $.30 per share. These warrants expire in November
2007.

The Company accounts for its options and warrants according to Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and follows the disclosure provisions of FAS123.
Accordingly, if options or warrants are granted to employees for services and other consideration with an
exercise price below the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant, the difference
between the exercise price and the fair market value is charged to operations and/or unearned stock
compensation. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, $74,000 and $-0- was charged to
operations and/or unearned stock compensation. The fair value of the options and warrants granted
during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, reported below, has been estimated at the
dates of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Valuation Model with the following assumptions:

2002 2001
Expected life (in years) . 1.0-10.0 10.0
Risk-free interest rate 5.0% - 5.0%
Volatility 211% 225%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%

The Black-Scholes Option Valuation Model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options and warrants that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option
valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price
volatility. Because the Company’s options and warrants have characteristics significantly different from
those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the
fair value estimate, in the opinion of management, the existing models do not necessarily provide a
reliable single measure of the fair value of its options.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options and warrants is amortized to
expense over the options’ and warrants’ vesting periods. The Company’s pro forma information is as
follows:

_ ’ 2002 2001
" Pro forma net loss $(3,918,423) $ (667,272)
Pro forma loss per share 3 (0.38) $ (0.14)

The effects on pro forma disclosures of applying FAS123 are not necessarily indicaﬁve of the effects on
pro forma disclosures of future years. '

NOTE 9- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases office space under a noncancelable operating lease with an entity whose major
shareholder is also an officer and shareholder of the Company. Under the terms of the lease, the Company

leases office space for its headquarters at a rate of approximately $8,800 per month. The lease expires in
May 2004.




NOTE 9- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Total rent expense, including month-to-month leases, for the years ending December 31, 2002 and 2001

was $153,827 and $137,643, respectively.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a party to legal proceedings relating to various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal

course of business. Management believes that the range of potential net loss resulting from these
proceedings will not be material to the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

A summary of the provision for income taxes at December 31, is as follows:

2002 2001
Deferred tax benefit due to temporary differences:
Federal $ 207,000 $ 52,000
State 69,000 17,000
Change in valuation allowance (276,000) (69,000)
Total income tax benefit (expense) $ - $ -
The deferred tax asset at December 31, 2002, is as follows:
Deferred tax asset - NOL carryforwards $ 758,000
Valuation allowance (758,000)
Net deferred tax asset $ -

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. The Company has established a valuation allowance for the entire deferred

tax asset, which primarily consists of net operating loss carryforwards.

The C ompany has net operating 1 oss ¢ arryforwards of approximately $ 3,280,000 for federal and state
These loss carryforwards

income tax purposes, which are available to offset future taxable income.
expire in various years through 2017.

Total income tax expense/benefit differed from the amounts computed by applying the' U.S. federal
income tax rates of 34% for both 2002 and 2001 to income loss before income taxes, primarily due to the
effects of net operating loss carryforwards, the valuation allowance and non-deductible stock

compensation expense.

Under U.S. federal tax laws, certain changes in ownership of a company may cause severe limitations on

future utilization of these loss carryforwards.




NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of temporary cash investments. The Company places its temporary cash investments with
financial institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts that approximate fair value because of the short maturity
of these instruments.

NOTE 12 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company paid rent of approximately $133,000 and $109,200 during 2002 and 2001, respectively, to
a related company owned by an individual who is an officer and shareholder of the Company. The
related company owns one of the buildings the Company is leasing.

The Company has a $40,200 note payable due on demand with a related company owned by an individual
who is an officer and shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company reimbursed an entity wholly-owned by an
officer and shareholder of the Company approximately $97,000 for costs related to the Company’s private
placement of its common stock.

NOTE 13 - NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

The Company is a “Fully Disclosed Broker-Dealer”. The Company does not carry customer accounts and
does not accept customer funds or securities. Instead, it has entered into a “clearing agreement” with a
clearing broker and has fully disclosed all of its customer accounts to this broker.

The Company is subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission Uniform Net Capital Rule (SEC
Rule 15¢ 3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital.

The fully phased-in net capital requirement for “fully disclosed” brokers-dealers that receive but do not
hold customer or other securities, is $50,000. The rule also requires that the ratio of aggregate
indebtedness to net capital shall not exceed 15 to 1.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had net capital of $1,377,156 and the Company’s aggregate
indebtedness to net capital ratio was 0.4 to 1.

NOTE 14 - OTHER

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which contemplates continuation of the Company as a
going concern. As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has incurred losses of
approximately $1,619,000 and $548,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively;
however, management believes that it has sufficient resources to continue as a going concern through
December 31, 2003. Management plans to continue to raise capital through equity offerings and to make
strategic acquisitions to increase its volume.

NOTE 15 - OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK

Included in the Company’s clearing agreement with its clearing broker is an indemnification clause. This
clause relates 1o instances where the Company’s customers fail to settle security transactions. In the event
this occurs, the Company has indemnified the clearing broker to the extent of the net loss on the unsettled
trade. At December 31, 2002, management of the Company had not been notified by the clearing broker,
nor were they otherwise aware, of any potential losses relating to this indemnification.

F-13




NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 2, 2003, the Company acquired, in an asset purchase agreement, the Boca Raton Branch of
Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (the ‘Branch”). The Branch was an affiliated retail branch
office of Wachovia Securities Financial Network, Inc. (“Wachovia™), with approximately 30 registered
representatives conducting retail brokerage business. The purchase price was approximately $1,800,000,
payable to Wachovia over four years. The purchase price contemplated the signing of an employment
agreement with each of the registered representatives. Management believes that the a cquisition will
expand its market presence and overall customer base. In accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations”, the results of operations of the Branch will be
included in the Company’s financial statements as of the date of acquisition.

Based upon management’s preliminary estimates, the purchase price, including estimated transaction
costs, will be allocated as follows: Customer list - $1,142,000; Goodwill - $708,000; Equipment - $6,000.
Customer list will be amortized over its estimated beneficial life of six years.




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

F-15



SUMMIT BROKERAGE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Schedule I
Computation of Net Capital Under Rule 15¢3-1 of the

Securities and Exchange Commission

As of December 31, 2002

Net Capital
Total consolidated stockholders' equity $ 1,770,844

Deductions and/or charges:
Non-allowable assets:

Commissions receivable $ 82,997
Other receivables 109,646
Prepaid expenses . 77,643
Property and equipment, net : 116,088

386,374

Haircuts on securities:

15% haircut on marketable equity securities 7,314
Net capital $ 1,377,156

Aggregate Indebtedness

Items included in consolidated statement of
financial condition

Accrued payable and accrued expenses $ 210,091
Accrued commissions 310,640
Note payable 40,200
Total aggregate indebtedness $ 560,931
Computation of Basic Net Capital Requirement
Minimum net capital required $ 50,000
Excess net capital at 1,500 percent § 1,339,761
Excess net capital at 1,000 percent $ 1,321,063
Ratio: Aggregate indebtedness to net capital 0.4to1

Reconciliation with Company's Computation (Included
in Part II of the Amended Form X-17A-5 as of December 31. 2002)

A reconciliation is not considered necessary pursuant to Rule 17a-5(d)(4), as there are no material differences
between the Company's computation of net capital under Rule 15¢3-1 and the computation of net capital
included on this schedule.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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' - REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE REQUIRED
BY SEC RULE 17a-5 FOR A BROKER-DEALER CLAIMING AN
EXEMPTION FROM SEC RULE 15¢3-3

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries -
Indialantic, Florida

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements and supplemental
schedule of Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries, for the year ended December 31,
2002, we considered its internal control, including control activities for safeguarding securities,
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control.

Also, as required by Rule 17a-5(g)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), we
have made a study of the practices and procedures followed by the Company, including tests of
such practices and procedures that we considered relevant to the objectives stated in Rule 17a-
5(g) in making the periodic computations of aggregate indebtedness (or aggregate debits) and net
capital under Rule 17a-3(a)(11) and for determining compliance with the exemptive provisions
of Rule 15¢3-3. Because the Company does not carry securities accounts for customers or
perform custodial functions relating to customer securities, we did not review the practices and
procedures followed by the Company in any of the following:

1. Making quartérly securities examinations, counts, verifications, and comparisons
2. Recordation of differences required by Rule 17a-13

3. Complying with the requirements for prompt payment for securities under Section 8 of
Federal Reserve Regulation T of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control
and the practices and procedures referred to in the preceding paragraph. In fulfilling this
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected
benefits and related costs of controls and of the practices and procedures referred to in the
preceding paragraph and to assess whether those practices and procedures can be expected to
achieve the SEC's above-mentioned objectives. Two of the objectives of internal control and the
practices and procedures are to provide management with reasonable but not absolute assurance
that assets for which the Company has responsibility are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Rule 17a-5(g) lists
additional objectives of the practices and procedures listed in the preceding paragraph.
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Because o f'inherent limitations in i nternal ¢ ontrol or the practices and procedures referred to
above, error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of them
to future periods is subject to the risk that they may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the effectiveness of their design and operation may deteriorate.

Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal control
that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of the specific internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. However, we noted no matters involving internal
control, including control activities for safeguarding securities, that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

We understand that practices and procedures that accomplish the objectives referred to in the
second paragraph of this report are considered by the SEC to be adequate for its purposes, in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and related regulations, and that practices
and procedures that do not accomplish such objectives in all material respects indicate a material
inadequacy for such purposes. Based on this understanding and on our study, we believe that the
Company's practices and procedures were adequate at December 31, 2002, to meet the SEC's
objectives.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
the SEC, the National Association of Securities Dealers, and other regulatory agencies that rely
on Rule 1 7a-5(g) under the Securities E xchange Act o f 1934 in their regulation o fregistered
brokers and dealers, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

/s/ Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
February 17, 2003
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors Subsidiaries

Marsha-ll T. Leeds SBS Insurance Agency of Florida, Inc.
Chgzrman offhe Board and SBS Insurance Agency of California, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer Summit Financial Group, Inc.
Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. Summit Holding Group, Inc.

. Summit Financial Services Group, Inc.
Steven C. Jacobs

Executive Vice President, Chief Auditors

Financial Officer and Secretary

Summit Brokerage Services, Inc. ] Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.

Orlando, Florida
Harry S. Green

Retired, Regional Vice President General Counsel
and Operations Director

for Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and Affiliates Greenberg Traurig, P.A.

Orlando, Florida
Sanford B. Cohen

President, Prescott Valley Broadcasting Registrar and Stock Transfer Agent
Co., Inc.

First Atlantic Stock Transfer, Inc.
Executive Officers Tamarac, Florida

Marshall T. Leeds
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer 980 North Federal Highway

Suite 310

Boca Raton, Florida

Telephone: (561) 338-2800

Facsimile: (561) 347-6705

Principal Corporate Office

Steven C. Jacobs
Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Secretary

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be
held on Thursday, February 26, 2004 at the
Renaissance Boca Raton Hotel, 2000 NW 19"
Street, Boca Raton, Florida 33431, at 11:00
a.m.







